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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

«'vsiON op planmnc

division of energy
Fax:(603)271-2615

Governor ' www.nh.gov/osi

March 8, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REOTJESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OS!) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement
(Contract # 1076440) with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene, NH, by increasing
the contract amount by $ 1,218,800.00 from $3,221,041.00 to $4,439,841.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program
(PAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through September 30, 2021. This contract
was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020, Item #46. 100% Federal
Funds.

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance FY 2021
01-02-02-024010-77050000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 1,218,800.00

EXPLANATION

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program.

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP
funding expected for PY 2021. This OSl contract amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with
program funds to support eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled
citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. OSl subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Jared Chicoine

Director

JC/adc

G&C 3/24/2021

TOD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



tOITieEPE.STl^TEGIC^lTIATI;V

SUBJEGT:; FUEL ASSISTANCE

;SOUti#iMsTERN :G0MMI:JN

.AMENDMENT

Strategic^
to asihe "State") ari.d Spuihwestern Gorrimwjiy Semct»,Jnc.^ 63^G^
Keene, Cheshire Cburity VNW^63,411

Pureuaritto ariAgt^mcrit'(hereinafterrefeited"to i^,;the'"A:grieeni^
I07^44G;;as approved "by Governor and Council on Septeini^r 23>2Q2p^i(ilem^^^
agrwdtpprdvidexertairiSeiyiccs.pcr.^e items andcphditionsspec^fie^
cohsiddraubniofipayment by ;Mc

^^HEREAS^p^^su^t 16 theipi^yisiohs'oPSw^^ be.
modified or amended^only by a written instrument executed ,by die-parties; thereto and ohly-after '
approyalpf such'mqdiribatibn br;aineadm

WHEREAS, Thc"Slate;:and;lhe;Cpntractprhave-a^

respects;

NOW THEREEORE, ih^cbnsideraiion dl'the foregbihg and bif the cdveridrits^ in
thc Agrccmcnt as set for^.herdn, thc.^ the lollpwihg:

,1; Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is airiendete
follpvys:

A) Price' Li friitation: Arhchd Subbarakraph 1.8 of the AgrcOMehTbystrikin
cii^ht'Sum 6r$3i2^^^ inserting in placctthcrcbT^^^^^

BTExhibit C- Payment Terms: Amend! Exhibit C. fiiy paragraph byvstriking the
ciiriCDl siimiof $3j221,041.00 arid inscriing in place ihcicbliihc-tbitjiSum^
$4;439-84i;6b.

Amend-Exhibit ip, second |)aragraph:by.striking the current sum of,$262v^
and inserting'$26.7,150.00,for adraini

Amend Exlubit G,.second paragraph,by strilahg the .ciiiTc^
arid ih^rtihg; j3;9,9R,650M for^I^^^

2. .Contiriuaricc'of Agn^mcnt. Exccj^ as specifically anicnded^M
and Conditions of this Amendment; obbgations of ihep^es.hereundcr shaill remain.in fult
force.and effect in.accordance wiih;thc; terriis and cpndidpr^ s^
existed iinmediately prior: to, this Amendment.

GOtnilAeT AMENDMENlVOFFlCEiOP^TRATEGlC INITIATIVES

SCS.Amcndiricnl Coriiracior Initial^
Cjnmtki-2i01Nill;IKA bate:'
CFDA::93.568; ■ V^b<1'oT2



IN V^iXNBSS' Wi'lEfUiOr^' the parties lia iheir hands as oT the day; and yc^
written.

STATE:^F
'Oificep/Str^^^^

^  \

State of:

jd'.Chicoine, Director

.Soi/t^vc^rDtGdmmumty Sc^

Job . Mahhihg; Chief Exccutiw^

County of ri^y/:ihyAJ^

Oh this llo day of ■;202Lbefbre-fefflri%^
who;

Gommuriitv
the undcrsi^pd officer;; speared A vw
acknoSvledg^ hifn^IfiiefSeiF - fiFj& - "oySi:A^^
SchjedSaih^, a.cdfpbfatibh^vand'.thathb/shb bcingiauthonzed so^to;d
ihstrurnenl fpr-:th_e

LN WITNESS: WHEREOF, 1 hereunto my hand- and official seal.
vl/i /;

V P/ubiic/JuctiPO of the Potted
My Cohfflussion e)m^ It V becv>,20^.

Approy^.as,t6:foim, exec^^^^^ substance:

OFFICE OF TOTJtTTPRW" .genera

^y: ̂
"Assistant; Attorney-GchcraJ

Date:

^  'A

■  -'f'lthimr. ■■'■■■'

I.hereby.cci^yTb^i iheTbiegping W the OpycrnpT^d Cpim of thcSutcpf
New Hampshire.attheif meeting^^

OFFICE OF THE^SECRETAR>^;OF.STA

By;

'fitle: -■■ .

SCS A'jii'eridniciu
Gmhl:-,G-210mHLIEA
(:i'iM:93;36s;

Conlractor Iditials: 'rr^-
t«tc:

Pa6®2'Of2



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State ofthc State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been
;

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0005232985

%

S&i

o
<5-9

(§>

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 21st day of January A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFlCA I E OKAl) > MORFi:^

« r

I. KevinWaucrsori: ..C.lcrk/Sccrctarylat' S6'ifthwe.stem:Cffl1mun^
;(Namc) (Corpomiion^^^

fHereinafter-the'"Goiporation"^ "NewHann^hire corpdration'.;hcrcHy certify.
(Slate)' "

.(l)alc)

(o be in.force yid-effect untii'Sebtember 3(). 2021.
(Cohtradterrninaiion daie)^

The pcrsbh(s)! Ivpltlingjhc'bcjow lii;lcdir«)Si(ion(s);arc aulhnfiyicd-to cxcculc;iand,dcnyw^
C'prfX)rati6n;any cqntract/prvOther for-thc'salepf pr^ucfs and^'^

(Nuiiic) , .

(5) liic mcctirig ofithc Bptuifof in accordance with Ncwliampsbirc ^
.(.SiHUTvprincdhxirotiori)

law ajid-.the by-laws'of'the Corporation; and (6) Mid authorizatioivKas-not been m^ifiedivamendtol,^
and coniinycs in-rull .fpriec/w tjic dale

(6)i:bcrcby; ubdcrei^dthai the relyionjthis ccrtiilwte/j^.cyid^^^
listed aix)yecuiTcntiy.occupyrthe;position{s)!indicatcd and that::tlicyhavc;^ll;audiority,to;bio^ >
ihcexlcnl thai therej^are any !iinils!pn>lhc aulhority oif any lislcd individual to^biiid Ihcicpi^intion ;v;n;c(|nlr<^
wlilvthcStatc ofNcw'H^iHj)shirc';:^I.such-limimiiofes irccxprcss staiOdhcircitv'

TN WrrW.SS WTCREOFfr have hereunli^scl-my han as ihc GlcrkySccielary of the coiponjlion ihi^

.1.6 day or February , 202j,; .

'^'a-/\AyAi
GlcrkilScbrctary



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM©D/YYYY)

9/8/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
rArtifinate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Clark - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

CGNTACT
NAME:

TaK, EH,- 603-352-2121 uuc. Not: 603-357-8491
csr24admln(Odark-mortenson.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC fl

INSURER A: PhlladelDhia Insurance ComDanv

INSURED SOUTHWeSTERHCOM
Southwestern Community Services Inc
PC Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B: Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.

INSURER 0:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 1286629394 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIPr THAT TWE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION'OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSUF^NCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB.
TYPE OF INSURANCE icisa POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
IMMmiVYYYYI

POLICY EXP
iMMmorrYYYi LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAJMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK21478S3 6nono2Q wc^no2^ EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES <EaoecufT8rK«>

MED EXP (Any one py»on)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(E« kODwII)

11.000,000

1100,000

IS.OOO

11,000.000

12.000.000

12.000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABtliTY

T ANY AUTO

PHPK2147e51 6/30/2020 6/30/2021 '1.000.000

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per penon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OV\»IED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per eccident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PeracdOenH

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

PEP

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHU8727327 600/2020 6000021 EACH OCCURRENCE 12.000.000

AGGREGATE 12.000.000

RETENTION 11ft OOP

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABOJTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^CECUnVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea, deacflbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belgw

3102800768 4/1/2020 4/1/2021
y "Per
^ STATUTE

"STiL"

fin

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101, Additional Remarlia Schedule, may be attached If more apace la required)
Workers Compensation laws apply for the state of: NH
All Officers are Included

State of New Hampshire
Office of Strategic Initiatives
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-8501

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE

ACORD 25(2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Christopher T. Suni;nu
Governor

STATE OF NEW HAAtPSH
Off-ice of Strategic Initiati

107 Plcasani Sircci, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155
Fax; (603) 271-2615

T20 OAS

Division ok Plannjwc

Division of Energy

www.nh.gov/osi

September 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Siaic House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR

& COUNCIL ON: 09/23/2020
AGENDAITEM: #46

P0#1076440

REQUESTED ACTION

I) Authorize the OfTicc of Strategic Initiatives (OS!) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestern
Community Services. Inc., (VC //1775I I), Keenc, NM, in the amount of X3,221,04 1.00 for the Fuel Assistance
Program cfTeclive October I, 2020 lliroiigh September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor and Executive
Council. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request arc anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

Office of Strategic initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01-02-02-024010-77050000

074-500587.Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY 202i .

$3,221,041..00

2) Further request authorization to advance Southwestern Community Services, Inc. S31 1,259.00 from the
above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, (he
synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide OA As' implementation of several other federal
assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP services. OSl proposes to
continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs Nvork closely with the OSl FAP Administrator in the iinplcmcniaiion of rhe
progiam.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Incontc Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Block Gram, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire families,
including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds arc targeted to low income households with high
energy burdens. The current maxinium income level is 60% of the Slate Median Income (SMI), which is
$69,686.00 for a family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 program year, but at this ilmc
Congre.s.s has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2021. Therefore, ilic comraci amount for

TOD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 G&C 09/23/2020



Mis I'ixccllcttcy, Governor Chiisjophcr I". Sununu
and ihc Hnnorabic Council

September 9. 2020
I'ajjc 2 of 2

each of ihc Community Action Agencies is based upon OSl's best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including carryover funds from (he prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended. Tiie proposed advance of funds will enable the CAAs to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine

Director

ja£PS

Enclosures

G^'C 09/23/2020



FORM.NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This ag^ncni and all of its attachments shall become public upon wbmissioh to Governor and
, Execullvc Coiincil for appr6\'al; Any information that is'privale. wnfidenlial or propriety must
be clcarty identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to'signing the contract.

AGKEEMENT

The Sute of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree wTollpws:

GENERAL PROVfSrONS

I.I State Agency Name
OfTice of StrategiciThiuatives

1;2. State, Agency Address
107 pjcasaht.Str««t, Johnson Hall
Concord, Ncw.HampahIre 03361

113' Contn^or None-
Southwcsteil] Gommuniiy Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way, fP Bbx.603, KcehCj^NH 03431

r.5.- Contractor.Phone.
Number

(603)352-7152

1.6- Account Number

01-02^2-024010-77050600.
074^500587 62B2IA

1.7 Compiotibo Date
September 3.0i 2021

1

1 .S. Price Limitation.

$3,221.641.00' "

1.9 Cohtracling Ofliccr forStatc, Agency
Eiiecn Smiglovv^kii Fuel AMistancc Program Administrator

1.10 State Agehcy'Telcphohc'Ntimber-
(663)271^2T55;'

1.11 C^nwctqr Signature.-

Dale:

1,12 Name and Title of Contractor Sign'aiory,
. John Manhing, CEb'

1.13' St«c, AgCTCY^tgnature, • 1.14 Name and Ti tle of Suite Agency Signatqo','

"Zi.redi CUicoWt, P-V.ec.+oi/-,

l.lf^ Ap'pr'o^.bytheN.li.'D.epartmcntof Adminislratioh,.Bivlsion,pfPcxsqqttel (ifapplicable)'

•By: Director, Oh:

1.16 Approval by the AttpmwGeneral (Form, Subsi^cc and Execution) (if ap^icahle),

1.17 i1 lij tin OiiMiiijjm liiil Ti rriiii r rniinril 0/applicable). '

Page I of 4
Contraclor Initials

Date 3)5)^



2  SEnVlCES-TO JBE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New
riampshirt. ociing ihrough. ihc agency idchtifica in b\ock Ll
("■SlMc"). engage cpn(rtci6r idcniified in block 1.3
piGontractor") ip perform; and il^ Contracior shall pcrfonii, the
work or sale of goods, or both, .identified and more particularly
described.-in ihc attached EXHIBIT D which -is .incorporated
herein by rcferiCTce ("Scnriccs ).

3. eFFECTlVEpATE/OOMPLETiON OE SERVICES.
3.1. HolwithStandihg any provision of this Agrcemerit to the
contrary^ and -subjca ,ip the approval of. the. Governor wi.
Executive Cduricil of thc,Slalc"bf NewHampshirc, if applicable,
this Agreement; and all obligations of thc panics hercundcr. shallbecome effective^'on the ;date the. Governor and Excculivc
Council approve'this .Agreement-as indicated in bl.QCk. 1.17,
uril««no iuch^approyai is required, in which ease ihe.Agrccipcnt
shall bcibmc ciTectivc pn-thc date the Agreement is signed bythe State Agency as shown in.block i-.l3 C'EITcctive.patc ).
3.2 If the Gontrtctgr-commences, the Servic« ^prior to the
EfTcctivc'Daic, afl Slices-performed b^ ihc Contractor pnor to
lh*e errcciivc pate shaj! be performed-'ai.ihe sole risk' ofthc
Coniri'ctiii-'i and in the event thai this Agreemchl-does riot become
effective, !lhe -State- shall . have no liability to the Contraclpr,
ih'ejg'dihg vyithPut limitation,, any obligation to pay the
Coiitractdr 'for :any costs incurred or Services, performed.
Ciqiitriicto'r must completc.,alLSeiviccs by the Completion .Date-
spcclfi^ in block 1.7.
4 conditional nature of agreement.;
Notwitfitanding- any proyisioh of .(his Agreement to the
■contfiry.- all. obligations of the State hercundcr, including,
without I'imitation; Uie conlihuafice qf payments hereunder. are
.contingcni upon thc.a.yaUabiUty. and cPnlihucd oppropnauon- of-
fund's raffwted by any, state.- of federal legislative, or executive-
action ihal reduces; clihtihates or otherwise modifies the■appropnatibn:or avai'labili.ty qffti'hdihg.for this Agreemwt andthe S'copejfOfjScryices ptbyidi^-in.EXHrBIT B,-m-whole or in

■part. In no even! shall .'the State-be liable for any pa>'ments
hcrcundcr ih exccss oTsucH aynilable appropriated funds. In
-evcht-;bf.a.rcduc.tioh of .tcrtnipalibn .of appropriated nindj the
Slate shall'hove the right tb. wjihK'oia .paymcnt until such-ftinds
bccome-availal^lc; ifcver;;ond.-shall have Uic right lo.rcducc or
termmatc the Services under tiiis Agreement- immediately ,up.qn
ei\'inii lhe.-Gbnir8Ctpr'.notice of sucli reduction or ienpinaljori.;
The Stale siafl''ndt bc'-req'uired to Iran'sferTunds.ffblh any bll.tw
accbuht of sptuxc to; the Accounl idcniificd in block, 1.6 In the
event JurMs 'in that Account are reduced or unavailable.
S. GONTRACT PRIGBTRICE LfMlTATlON/
PAYMENT.
•5 I The -comnicfpfice, melhod of paymcnt, and terms of
arc idbhtin^'ond more particularly-dcscrlbe.d m EXHIBIT Cwhich'is incorpoi^tcd-hcrein by reference.
5.2 Tiib payment "by the State of Uic contract price shall be the
only an^ the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for allexpenses of whatever nature incurred by the Coniracior in the
pcrfo.ima'rice hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to Ihc; Contractor for fte Serx'iccs. The.State shqll
have rid liability ip;Uic Contractor-other than the contract price.
'5 3- The State reserves- the right to offset, .^m .any nmdunis
otherwise payable-to the G'onlractbf itridcf this Agreement those
iiqiiidated amounts required or peiTiiittcd. by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 8'0:'7< or any oUier'provisiqn'oflaw.
5:4 Notwithstanding any provision in .(his. Agrccnient to the
cdhlrary and notwithstanding unexpected circuntstanccs, in no
evcnt-shall-thc.ioU) of all payments authofiied, or actually made
hwcyn.dcr.-cxcecd the Price Limilatiori set forth in.block 1.8.

6 CQMPLIANGEDV CONTRACTOR \yiTH LAWSA.ND regulations/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTilNiTY. . L o •
6.1 In connection with the performance, of the Services, the
Contracior shall' comply 'wiih all, applicable statutes, laws,
reguiations, and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal
auihbrilies which •impose-any obligation or duty upon the
Cionwcior; mcludmg, bui not' limited lo.'ciyil rights-and equal
employment-opportunity lavra,. In addiction, if this A^ccmeni.is
funded in any-pari.by monies of the Uriit'cd Statcs. tlie Contractor
shall comply .w;ith:all.Tedcfal.executive ordcrs.'.rulcSi regulations,
and-stalutcs. and with any.r.u(cSi regulations and guidelines asithe
Slate or iheUhitcd States.Issuc'tb implemenl these regulations.
The Contractbf shall also comply wift all applicablc Intcllec.iti.al
property lav«.. . . ...
•62 Ouring'thc tcrm;of ihis-;Agreemcnt, the Contractor shall not
discriminate" agbinst. employees or applicants- for cfriployment
because of race, pplb.r.ircj.igioni.crccd, age; sex, handicap, ̂ 'iial
oricntaii6ri,,qr;naliqM! brigiri end will take affirmative action,to
prevent.such;dis^rimination. . -. o
6 '3 The Gbhlfa'ctbr agrees to' permit the State ,or United Stages
apcess-.ip any^pftKistContractor's books, records and account? for
the pu^bscof isccrtainingcompliancc with allrulcs, rcgui^tipps
arid'-brd>rs, "ari"d ih"c .covenants, .terms and .conditions/qf .this
A^ec.ment..

7. PERSONNE^^ ... i, - ,
7 I Th'c'Gontrattor Shall at.its own expcnse prpvidcoll.pcrsonncloecWany' io-peffo'rm'lhe Services. The Cbritnictor warrants that
•SU •bcrionhcl" engaged in-lhc :Sci^ic^ shall b.e ■qualified topeffbi^'lhc " •Sen/ices, and shall ^ properly licensed -and
'otKenvise authorized to db,'s6, under-all applicable laws.-
•7.2" Unless;otlicrwisc.«ulliofi7.ed in writing, during ilic term of

• thW Agreeincnl'; and--fgr-a: period of six (6): months after.ihq;
Compiclibn D'atc-.m.block 1-.7. the Cbntrocior shall .not.hire., and
shalK not- permit, any subcontractor or other person., firm orrcoiporttion with whom, it is engaged in a- combined cfTqrt- to
pcTform-.tbc Services to hire, any person who is a.Siaic employee
-or official; who.'-is materially •i'nyqlved in the procurement,
administra't'ibn or pcrrormancc. of this Agreement. Thisprovision shall survive'.tcrrri.inaiipn of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting O.ffic.cr specified in.block 1.9, or hjsorher
successor, shall.bc.'the State's representative. In.ilie cvent of any
dispute conccfri.ing the interpretation of this Agrebmc.nt; the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for Ihc State.

Page 2 of 4
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8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. '
8.1 .Anyone.w more ofihc following acu.qr.omijsions^of the
Cqn^cior shnii consiihitcan-cvcrit bf'dcfault hcrcundcrC Event
of Oeiaui^'X': ■■ i.. -i
8.1.1 iailurc." to" pcrfcnn the Sciviccs satisfaclpnlx or OO'
schedule; , .
8.1>2 failure lo subtnit ahy.report fcquire'd hcrcunder; an<yor
8.1.3 failure to perfo^'any .other (^ycnani, icrm or condiiion.oT.
this Agreement: «

8-2 Upon "ihc;occurTcricc of any'E.Venrof&fBult, the State may
l^canyone..or.more..orali;ofthc.f:o!1owm^ .
8.2;l give the eontra«oria wrilicn h6.licc Event of
okfauU and.rcpuiring;il to.be;rcmcdkd'Avi^in, ih ih^ absence of
•8 grcaier or lesser spccificatioh.pftirp^^iily ,(-3p) days from.ihe
dtteofihe notice; and if.ih«'E>^,tofDefauU-is.notiimely cured,ttminatcthis A^men\.efrpctlyc.twp'(2) days after giving-
Gontractor-.noticc dftenntria.ti6n;>
8.2.2'givc;theCbhtr8Ctor a written'npiice specifying tbe.Event pf
(default and .susffendihe all payments to be made under- this
Agreement; and .oWerihg ̂ fthe portion-of lhc.contra« pnce
which would'dth.cr\*'ise accrue'tO' tKe -ConMctor during the
period from.ihe date, of such .notice until such iime as the-Stale
dt^rmines thai- thC'Cdhtractprhos: cured-the Everit.-pf Default:
shall •never be-'paidJo.'lhd ̂ nmctpr;^
8.2-:3 give the Gohlrt^r a wringi noticc^specifying the Eyent.of
Dcfauli.and. 'sct pff'against any other obligBtions d»c S^te may
o^ to the.G^trtcipr ahy damagcs the S"ia'te,suCrcrs by reason of
any-Evchi^of Default; an^or
8.2":4 giyc the.Gdntj^pra'wriltcn.notiCe.specifyihg'the.Event of
.Default, tfeai .the" ^"grtcmeni: as -breached, tei^ihotc the
Agreement ahd'pu'rsue;wy;of iUTemcdics at.law of in .equity, or-
•both. . . u • fl
8.3. No failure by the:Staic .lo^cnforce any,provisions.hereptetter
any Ey.eht-'of'bcftiiltshall^^^ #• waiver- of-iis,fights with;
neg^d.'lo 'mat Evcnt;-pf Default, or any subsequent Event: of;
Default; No'exprcss failurc.to coTorce any Evcnt.dfpefayli shall
•be ii^bica" a wajvW o'f thc'fight ofihe SUte. td.renforce each and
ail bTthc"'provisi"on$.heredfm|^ri*any fufthef or dlher Event of
I^fnult-.onlihc part of the Conttacior.

9. TERMiNAflON-
9 1 Notwithstanding paragraph'8';, the, Stale rnay, at its sole
discreiion..ierminatc-ihe A8reemehi:.for.ahy;rwon,.in whole or
in parti-by thir^'(3!0) days.-'writtch.nb.tiM .to ihe.Contraclor that
frie.'StaU'M's;cxercising4ts'pptlph,tb lenninate the. Agreement.

9.2' In the event oTah wly teiTtimaiion-ofMhis.A^cement for
any reason omcr Ihim. the;-.completion of ilhe Services^ the
Coniftciof'Shall, at the. Stile's' dUcr^on. deliver to the
Contraciing Offr,c.cr,.hpy.lat'er;.thto.fiftce!i (I 5);days after the date
of" termination, "a 'report'('Termlitaiion R'cport') describing in
detail all Services pcrforrnc.d; ;ariS'thc contrtctipricc earned, to
and.including the datc-of fcnninRliqn'. Tbc fo™. subjcct;maiier,
content,, and number of copies' bif the Tennination. Report shall
be idcnticoUotliosc.ofDny'Final.Report described m ihcattachcd
.EXHIBIT B: In.Bdditio.n.'a.t mc Suite's discretion, the Contractor
shall, wiihiri .1,5 'daysibf npiicc of early lerm'ination. develop and

submit to the State a TransiUon Plan for services under, ihc-
Agrecrocnt

:ib. DATA/ACCESSyCpNFJpEN'nAJLltV/
PRESERVATION-' , ,„
10.1 As..iised,'in this Agrc.c'meny the word-'-data'-' shall mcnn all,
ihformaiip'h and^ings-dcvelqpcd orobiained.duringthe
pcrfo'fmarice.bf; or.acquircd'or de.yelpp^'by rwpn qf^-ihis
.Agfecracnli incfudingi but'.noi limited lb, all stu'dlM.i reports,
nici'...forhiuiac. surveys, maps, .charts,.s6uhd'.ftcofdmgS, yideo
recqrdmgi; iictorial reproduciions, dravyfn^, ahaly^; grapHic-
rcprcsc'niaUoils,- compuicrprogmms, coinp.uicr printouts, notes,
lelicfs,.mem"'bfahdvp»p^«. all-whemcf
finished brunfmished..

10.2 All-data and any property which has been rcce.ivifd.'frp.ni
the State "or purchased with funds'providcd for that pii.fpq^.
undcT'this Agrcemcnli siiall.bc the prqpprty-bf ihe'Statc, end
sha.il l^ rbturned'to 'thc-Sla'lc upon demand or iq^n termination,
o'if this Ag^mcnt-ror any-rcason:
ip.l-'ebn'fidentiality'of'data shall'befgoyenied by NiH. RSA
chapicr-9 liA-or other cxisfing.law. Disclosure ofdaia.requires
priip'r written ̂ pipval of the Slaie.

11. Cphrri^"Ct.OR'S RELATION'^TQ the state. In-the
pirfdfmahce.of this.-Agrccmeni the.C.oh^ctof is- ih.aH.rcspccts
•an. indcpend'eot contractor; 'wid .nejihcr an agent nor. m
cm'^lbyc«.-o'f thc'.Sta'tc. '.Neith.er iKe.-GonMctqr nor any of its
officm;.employees,;agents.;or members ̂ 11 have-authority tq
bind the State orfect.ive-fm'y b'ew woriccn' compcnsation.of
other emoluments.prb.vidc.d b'y-tfic Stamito it5.emplo)'ces.

12. AS>ldNMENT/DEEE.G.'ATIQN^MBGpNtRACTS:
■h.\ The Contractor, shall inoi'Msigii. or otherwise transfer ^"yinteiasi;in'lhis:AgreementWilhbu.l.tWc'p.r;qr:Wri'ticn noticc,which
shall' be provldcd^-to.iKe State at l.easy;fiftecn|(.l'5) days, prior to
ihe'assignmeni, and a. wrKtcn cq'nsent of-the Siaic; .For puipbscs
of this pafa^p.h, a, .Change, of- Control shall cpnst.itute-
assignmcrit. '"Cha'rigc bf iSbntror^ means (a) .nNrBV.
.consblidati.bn, b"r;a .transaction or scries of-related lran$hcti^ in
-which .i.'m.ifd.'party," -.together with -its: afliliatcs, .b^'bmes .the
direct of iWire<tt:o>yner of fif^ .pwcenf (S.0%) or. more of" the
voting, shams qr'simjiV intcnssts' or-cbfnb'inod v.otlrigpower of the Cbntracuir; or (b);ihe $ale:of all.qf substhmi®!!)' '®"
of the a^ts oftiie'Contracibr..
V2.2 N5he;~<if-ihe Services -shall .be .subc'oiiiract^ by dieC^nuadtbf'without'prior writton'nolicc and cbriseni prOicrSiate.
i^'C-S'tatc is entitled to copics;,of,all,5ub'conUa.cu andiassignmcnt
a'grccmcn«=and shail nof'be boiind by^any prov^ions wntalned
in.'a sub<i,ntnic4 or an assignment ^'emenVtp which it is not a
party-'

iNPEMNiFlGATION.;UnIes's bihcrwisc.cxcmptcd by law,
tf)'6 Cqiitractor^shall indcmnify/and Kbid hArihl.ess'Oic State, its
'bl^cefs Md employees,, from and'against; any and all claimSi
.liaibilitii5s .a.n'd cbsis fbr-any pcfibhal injury or propcrty-damagw,-
paicni or «jopyright;infnngement; orblher claims asserted against
(hc.Statc, its officers or cmpl.byecs; yhich arise.OuiofCor which
maybe claimed -lb arise out qO the acts or omission of the
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Contraclori or subconiracioh/.iriduijmg but not limited to; the
heelic'encei reckless or Intentional conduct The State shall not
be liable for any'cosls incuired by-the Qqriq^or. arisinB.under
this p'oritgraph V-l Notwithstahd.uig'.ihe fpregoingi.nothmg herein,
contained ihall be deemed to..consntuic a y^iver of ihe soveret^
immunity oPihcfStelc, whicH.immunily is. hereby rcscrycd to, the
State,, this covenant in hataBraph. 13 shall survive, the
tcrminalioti of ihiis Agfeemcht.

14.TNSURANCE. u .i
14.1 The Contractor ^all; iat its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain i.ri force, and shall require imy.
svi^ontracior. or assignee .to bbcain .and maintain in .force, the
fol'lowmginsurance:-
14.1.1 commercial gcncral.l.iability'insurance against..a.ll,claim
of bodily injury,, death or-prop^ dam8gc,.;in. amounts of not
I<is than $1,000,000. per ̂ lii^'ce'and $2,000,000 aggrt^tc-
or excess; and - ^
14 1 2 special cause orio'sscoveragc.formcovenneall.RrqpcJiy
subject to subparagraph: 10..2.herein, in an.amourit not .Iw than

-t.i of the OrODCTtY-,

•on policy-rorths;ahd chdprscmcnts,-appro.vcQ.io.r.u« ...
of. New Ham-piHVrc'by''.ihe NiH. Dicpartmwt of Insurwce.- and
•issucd.by.ihsurers.;!i.^sedtn-the^
14.3 The C.<>ntractOf shall; furnish to the Gontr^^.mg: Officer
identified m.block.l,S!,,qrhjS or her successor, .B'certifi^e(s) of
insurance for all .insurance required' under, this" A'grectneni:
Coniractor sHallial.sp ton.ish;io the Contrtctin6.Qfticcr jdcnufjed
in b'lock 1.9, his or her'succcssor; ccrtifica.tc.(s). of insuranceforairj^waKitbf.ihsurancerequircd.uh^.r'this'.Agre^^^^
later- than ten .(l O) days ;prior to the iexpiratipn; tlate of each
insurance pdlicy:" The: ccrtificatc(s). oT iwurance and an^rpnc\^)s:ihtrcprshail.be:attachc.d:and,arq'mW by
reference.

IS. WOFIK£10'eOMPXNSATlON.;

15.1 By si'^irig thjs agrcemeh^.thc Contr^tor. a^ces. ccrtincs
and w-airahts^fethV^n^or.-iis in cb.mpliancewithor m
frt^. ̂  rcqui^em^■ts•:Ofl^^.H: RS.A choptCf-281-A C-fi'orkers.
Cdmpensalion").. . • ,
15 2 'to^ihe-cxienfihe Cbnftctbf is"subjcc,ftp ihe requirements
of N.H. i<SA- chapter 28.1-A, eonlracuir shall maintain,, and
reqiii'rc any-subcontriddf'or. 'wsign.cc,to secure: and maintain
Daytticnt of Wotltefs:- 'Gompcri'sation :in connection, with
octivitiis whichithe perapri.p:roposcs to undertake purs^tAO this
Agrcemeni. The.Cdnlra;itor.lKa|l ftimish ihc.ContractmgOfricerldcnuriedln'block-:l.9..orlii$.prher.succcssor,;pro6rbfWorkw^
Gompensaiion in thc:Tnahncr'd«^ribed. in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A-and any applicable rencwalfs) thereof.; .w shall be
attached and- are -ihcdjporatcd herein by rercrenpc; The State
shall not. bc; rwpbhsibie for. ;paymcnt- of any Workers
Compensation premiums or for any. other-claim or bencfii, fqr
Contractor, or any sui)c.ohfracior or cm^ployce of Cort^ctpr.
which.jritghl .arijc unda appiicablc Stale of-Nc.w H^rnp.shire
Workers' Qom'pcgsation laws- in corihcction' with thepcffonnance:o>ih.e-Scrvicc3 under.ihis.Agrcemcnt.

16. NOTICE..Any notice" by'a pwty hereto to the other
shall bcdccmed lohavebe.cn.dulylcljvcrtdorgivcn at the ti^"
of mailing byccrtified mail. pbstagfe prepaid, in a United SutM.
PosV Office addressed, to the parties at the. addresses giycn in
blocks W2 and .1 ;4,- hcrciti.

17, amendment. This,Agreement may be amended, waived
or dtfchargcd.only by .an instrument in writing sipcd by the
parties hereto and only after approN'al of such .amendment,
waiver or discharge by tftc^Gbycntor.and.Excctiuve.Council-of
the Stale of Nc.w Hampshire unless'no such apprbvahs i^quir«
under thc.circumstances pureuant'to' Siatc-law, rule or policy;

18 CHOICE OF.LAW AND PORUM: ThU Agreement shall
be governed, inicri)hsi.cd.and.cDnstru«l;ln_BCCbrtan^^^^
laws of ihc Sute of New-Hampshire, and is bindmg uppn and
•inures to'ithc benefit of the paitics.and'tbeir rcsp.cc.tire supers
and assigns.. The wording used in.this Agrecrncnt .is ihe.wp.rdtpg
chosen by the parties to cxprcss iheir mutual-iniehl. wd no rule
of.constnJctlbnsh"all:bc- applied against or-in..ftvbr.-of any parry
Any actions arising'put of this Agreemcril..sbal.l belbrou^t and
maintain^; in New! Hrmpshire Superior Court, \vhich shall have
exclusivc.juris'di.ciibn Uicrcof.

19 CO.NRI-ICTINC terms; Iri. the; event of a conftict.
between the tcrtns.qf;th.is;.P'0 form
A) and/or attachhienl^ ahd ■amendment ihcreof. lhe lerrns of the.
p:37 (K modified'in EXHIBIT A);sha cpntfol.

.20. THWD PARTIES. The paiiies hereto dp not irtcrid to■bcnefi.l. bny third, parties ^and"this no' ^
construed.tq confer any such bchefit...

21. headings. The headihgs'thfbughoui^e A^emcnr are
for refci^ce; purposes only, ;and.- ihc'wqfds fconiamcd thereinshall i'n.qo. way be'held to .cxplai.hi mbdi.fy.^plify or;aid.m th.c
ihterrir^liori, construction or ip^'ing 9^ Jbe provisions-of.lhis.
Agrccm'cnL

22- SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modify.irig;p:rovis.ions:set>forih.in.thC:a.nacHciEX;Hm A arc.incorp"bra.ica.
.herein by reference.

2-3 SEVERABILITY. ih'ibc-cy.cnt any.ofthe.proyiisibns.qf thisAerccmciu.-arc.held by-i^iburt oT competent Jurisdiction to be
• contrary to any rt.ate;or:fed.eral law..tHeTcrh8inLng provisions of
this Agreement wlll;fcrna.ih in-full forcc ahd,effect.
24. ENTmE.ACREEM.E.fHTvth'S-AE^ment, which niay^
executed in amunibeV of .counterparts, each of which" shall be:
deemed ah onginaij constitutes, the entire -agreenienl and
understanding bctweeih the. parties, -and. suj^edcs; all .pnor
agreements and undciiiandings with respect to thc.subject matter
hereof.

.  Page 4 of 4
GontracTof. Initials

Date^fz^
sQH



EXHfBlt A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

I. SubparagraphJ.16.ofthc.Gcnerd Provisiohs/ nptapply.lp Uus agrMment..

2 On or ticforc ihc date sct.forth m BlOck 1.7 of thoGcocral Provisions, the COn-lractpr sbaJl.
deliver to the State ah independent audit of Ihc Contractor's.cnUrc agency by a qualified
■independent auditor, in good standing wiOi the state arid federal gp.vcmmcnt;.

•3 This audit'shall bexonducted.iri accprdnncc with the audit,rtquircments of Officciof
■ ManagcmcntandBuagct;(O.MB)Circular2:CFR..200.Subp^F-.Au.d^^

The Fuel Assistah'cc.Prograin shall be considered a "'major program" for purposes of this.audit.
4 This aud"it report shall, include a scheduleiof revenues ah.d cxpcndiuuxs by oontract or^^^riurabcr.oFajl expenditures during the Conlraclor.'s .fiscal year, pic Coatractpr,sM! utiliM a

coriipctitiye bidding-proccSs to chbosc a qualified .financial auditor at least every four years.-
5. TTie-.audit report shall iricrudd-a.schcdulc, of priorycarsVqucstiorica. costs

resppnsc-to thexurrenT'stafus of the.'prior yc.ar.s' questioried costs. .Cop.tcs p.fialf.QMB l^cra
written as a result ofauditsrshall bc'forwardcd to OSI. The Mdil shalfl^ifonYardcd to OSl
.within one fhoridi of.th'e tj.me of.rcccipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action-plan.tor.each
findihgxr questipp.ed.cost.

6. Deieteithe .fo.llpwng from paragraph 10 of thc Gcncr^ Provisions: "TTie fp'frri.s.ubject matter,
.content, and ni^.qV otcdpicsOf Termination Report shall beudcntic-aJ. to .tfiose-.pf-any.Final
Report .described in.Exhibit A."

?; Thcx.pst5;chargcd uhdcfithis.-.cflpU-ap.t sha.ll be determined as allowablc'undcr the cost pnnciplcs
detailed in-^iiER 200. Subpart E - Cost Principles.

8  Pfdgi^.-^a financial records pertaiQingfo-.thiS-cOritraci shal^ be ^
(Ihr&j years from ihc:date of submission of the final cxpcnditure:rcport:pcr 2.CERm
.Rctcntion-Rcqujrcmcnts'fo unti' ail.audit.'findmgs have .bcen.resplved;.,

9. In accord^cfe^with Public: U-w;.l()3-i3.3, the "Dep^cntsxfUbor, He^lh antl Hupian
Services; and Education,.ahd.Rc'l^ Appropriatioris Act'of .1.995", the.follo.wmg
■provisions arc appli'cab.l'c to''this:grant award:

a) Section- 5.0'7;. "Purcha^ ,of American -Made.Equipment ^d.Products - It is lhe sense
of thc Congress.that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipriiCTt ah'djpi^ucts
piirehased with funds made available in this Act should.be. Amcricarirmadc.

b)- Section 508: "-Wen issuifii'statcm'ents. press releases,;requcstsif6hpropOMls, bid
.solicitations and biherdbcuiticnls describing-projects or progi^s:.fund_cd in.wholcxr m
part ^^tith f^erai mbhcy;.all:statcs reccivingTedcral funds; .includjng bul not limited to
state and.idMl gpvciTUTicnts and rccipients.of federal research graiits.-shallxlcarly stale

Cxhftits'A, B Ag*SCSUHEAPii .Coouiawlniliils.
CFOa«3.S68
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(l).lhc percentage of tHctbtai costs of the program or project which wiil he financed
with federal rhbncy, (2) the doll^ ̂ punt of federal -funds for the pirojecLor program,
and (3) llic pefccniage and dollar amount of the total Oosts of.the project prprogram^that
will- be financed by non-gpyernmental sources."

id. CLOSE'OUT OF GONTR^GT. All fihaJ.rcqiiiitd rep.orls.anti reimbureement rcqiiests-sh^i bc-
submittcd- to .the. State withinthirty (30);days ofthe completion date'(Agreement'Block-'1.7). -

11. advances. Advance funds tnust.be used soieiy for appropriate Fuel;Assistance Program,
cxpcriditufes. Ad vance program .funds are to be used, only for Fuel Assistance prpgramwehdof
payments. All Fuel Assist^.ce Program payrfifehts, iiicludihg Advance program payinchts, must
be transferred from thc:Cgnununity Acii6n;Agcncy|s general ope.rating accourit mio 0 s^iCc.
Fuel. Assistance .Program accpunt within 48 hours ajfter being received electrorucally from the
.State. CAAs rnust-subnait the bank-account humber-of the designated barik acc6uht,for thp
advance, funds tp'OSI -prior 'to.the elcctroriic submission "ofrlhc funds to- the. CAA. Unspent,
Advance prograni funds;musf remain in.th FAP d,edicated.accouht-at;alI times and cannot be
.coniihgled with.any■^ther CAA fun.ds, -GAAs are rcquired to submil.a complcic electrpnic copy of
.Ihc'FAP-dcdicated.bank.-accounli.st^^^^ OSI on a ihOnthiy basis.

Exhibits A, 6 A'J
SCSLIHEAPJI X ■

Conlncierlmliu
CFDA*93.SM
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E)aUBITB

SCOPE QF SERVICES

The Contractor agrocs'tb provide Fycl Assistance Program:scrvic,cs to qu^i6ed:lpw income
individuals.-ahd.agrccs to perform all such services and omerwprt^necessary to operate.thc.Progr^.in
accordance the requifcrachtt ofthis contract, the principles, and ot?jccUvcs set forth.in Ac Fuel
Assistance Pro^ p.roccdurcs Manual,;lrifohhalion Mfcraoranda- and,oAer:gujdance,as determined
by OSI.

FuclAssis.t^cc Program (.FA?)-services v<ill be defined to includc Ae following catefiones:

1. Outreach, cligibilityi dctcmilriation and certi.fi.calibn of FAP appUciints.

.2. Payments directly to energy vendors:"
a. Rcimburscmcrit for goo^ and services delivered
b. L'mes of credit.

6. Budjgei plan payments

3, Payrnents.directlylo;|andlordsviavbucherefo.rrenters:.whopay'tiiHrericngy:Mstsas:
portions of,their rent.

4. Payments directly t6blients;ori!y when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in.the,Fuel
•Msi.stancC'Proccdufcs Manu^..^

s; Emergcnc)' Assistance in the form of reiinbursemehts for goods or .services delivered in
.accdrdahcc wi'ih paragraphs 3 and 4-abovc..

Exhtbia A, B &.Q
SCSUHEAP21 C6olrtc.of-lmti.fr'
C'FbAlM.S.6.i ■.
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EXHTBitG

eaymeot terms

In considcration.bf Ihc saUsfectbO' pcrformance^ofthc services as delcnnin^.by thc State; the. Stale;
.a^reesio pay over to the Conlracfor the sum of $3,221,041 .OO (which hcrciitafter is^refcrred io as the

,U,iX)n;lh.c"State's reccipt.of m^^ tow Incomc Hbme Ehcrgy Assistancc Prpgr^
Dppai^ent of-Hcaith.and Human Services, thcfollb\wng;funas:will,,be

i262,T50;0'0 for;administraUori-costs, of which $:32,794.00 will be.issued as a cash adyancc;
$2,7$4.650.00 for progi^ costs.; of which $27.8,465.00 Will be issued .Ss.a cash advance,
$174,041.00 for Assurance 16.

The'dales;for thisxontract.afc 0,ct6ber L, 2'0^0,thrpugh Scptcrribcr -3b, 2021,

Approval to obligale.(Exhibit I) the above-awarded fimds wiU be provided in writing.by'the Qffice.pf
Straiegic lnitiatives to the Contractor, as the Federal funds become available: .Drawdo.wns from;the
balairceofhinds will be made tO:th,eCo.ntractor;only after wri'tten.dbcumenfationofcash.nCed is
subin.ifted.tb the State. Hisburs.em.ent of the Grant shall be'in acco.rdance with procedima established
bythe'State as .detailed-m' the Eiiel.Assistahce:Prbgfam Procedures Manual.

.CEDA:t!tle::

CFDANO:

.A>yard Njme;

Fcder^ Agency-

Low Ihcbme HdniiCEncrj^ Assist^cc Prbgrarh

93.568

Lb.W Iricornc" Homc-:Energy Assi'starice Progra.m
1

Hcalth'&.Human.ScmccS;

AdmimstifEitioh fpr. Ghildren.M Famiiics
. Office of'Gbmmuhity'Scrviccs

SCS LIHEAP21

eFDA#93.5M

Gj^'ibiU A,.B

Cr>tunic(6r''tnit

put
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NEW'HAMPSHTKE office of strategic INiTIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

■nc Contractor identified in Sectipn i .3 pTthp Gencral.Provisipns agfees tb^iyScciidns 515i-5160 ofthe Drug^Eree Workplace Acl of 1988 :(Pub-. U IpO:69q,.T.Ue y,.Subntlc. ̂
70lctW);.a''''f"rthhfh«reKW;haye,thpGpnhactbr.'^ l.l,l.andl.l2o
t'hc Gcncral'Prpvisions-, execute lhe:following\Ccrtificatj.pn;,

GERTIFICATION^GARDING DRUG^FREE WORKPLACE.RE.Qyii^NlENTS
. I^OR GRANTEES StHER THAN-iNDiyiDUAtS:

US DEPARtNlENT-.OF.HEAtTH AND HITMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
tiS bEPARTI^NT OF EDUCATION- CONTRA

US DEPIARTMENT of agriculture - CONTRACTORS
US DEPART^NT OF;LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Thi. ce^ificalibh is requircd by the regulations implemcplirig:Scctions SjSI ,5V60 of ■thciDajg;Frcb;Workpla^^^Titlb-vfsubtitic B; il aS,®; 7(11 et-aeq,}. ThcPahitdiy 3^ 1989 regulatto^^ were
amendidi^d published-ga Part Ifoffle May.25,1990 Regispt^ja^s 7ll58lt21.6^^^
cSrtifieationby grantees (and.by-.infcrericd and'subK|Ontractors).prior.to award. thal.tt^ywiM■mftiWtairi'a^'nig-frec workplace. Sectlonv30va.630(c)of.ther:cgulatiori:prQyi.dcrthat'a5^a^^
sui^Wantees and-'Sub^ntiactors):that:is tf  State
fcdtSrfiM Veafiin lieu orccrtificalcs for each grant during;:tb.c. federal fiscal-year covcrcd.by^e.'.wwfication,
fhi ccrtificaie sct;out'bcIow is;a ftiat£i4aV'{^ij^ntafi^ ofTdct-upon-which .rslian.^:iJ;p.lac^_V5fh^;t^^^flwafdV^c;-^riL Paise certification or violation of die' ccrtifi.datibn Ml bc'grounds^fbr suspension ofor-dcbafment. Gpnti^^ors-usmg.dus term
should send, if.io:

pireciori New Homp.shire".Officc of'Stralcgic^InitlatiycSi
107 Pleasant Street. Johnspri Hail, Gbncprdi NH 03301

(A) 'TTie.grantee.ceitifies thai it wiU .or will .continiie.tb proyidcia,drug-free tybrkpl.ace by:
M  Piiblishing a statement nqtifyipKemployees-.thaCtHe iinlawM minu.fibjure dismbution.■dispetising,possessibh.bf:bi;useqfa,cbnfrqlledsubstaiiceis;prohibited.in.,the:gw^

ibrtcBlace nnd sqecifying the actiqnsithal wilfrbe take.n against em.plbyecs:fqr ycqlatiqn qfsqehwpiHcp)ace:and specifying
-prohibitioh;'

(P); :EstabIishing ah ongbirig dVug-fiec awwcncss:prograni-tb.ihf6mt cmpIoyeKfabput
(1.) the dangers brd,rug:ab"usc iiv ihcworkplacc;;
(2) the grantcc.'s policy oT'maint.aining a dnjgrfre'e .workplace, ^ ^
(3) any available drug counseling, rchabiilialion, ahd,eniRl.bycc .a5sistancc!programsiand^
(4). .the pcnalnes that-may t^iimpbscd'Upoi^ cmpibyces fordrug,abuse violations bcc.urrmg in

..the workplace:

Making it a r^uircmenf that-each cmp|oyce t6,bc.CTig^^ m the perforrnance^orthe '^nl be
giyen a copy of the siaiemcnl fc.qu ifcd by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in-the. statement rcquircd by.Raragraph (a) that, as "a cpndition.of
emp.I.pynient under the grant,- the employee will

(i) abide by the, terrn.s-of the statement; and
P3 7 Exhibits D ihru H
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certification REGAiyDnyC PRUG-FfOEE W EiEQUIREMENTS
ALTCRNATiVE;.!- FQ'R.GRAr^EES OTTOR THAN INDIVIJDUALS, cont'd

US bEPARTMENT OF BEALTH AND HXJMAN.SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
USlDEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACrORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACtOI^;
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US.DERARTMENT OF ENERG Y

(2j hotifyThc ciriploycf inlwrllingprhis or herconviction for o violalion of-a criminal drug
•statute occurring^ln the \yorkplQce tio later thah five calendar days;after such conviction.

(e") Notifying'the'.agency'in writing, within ten calendar days aftcr.receiving nbtice under-
subparograph (dX2).ironi ah'eniploy.ec.or oth'ervvisc. receiving actual notice of such conviction-,
employers, of copviclcd'employees must provide notice^ including;^sition titJc. tb every-^anl
officer oh \vh6sc grant activity the convicted cmpJbyee.w^ Ayorkiug, unless'lhc-fedcral agency-
has designated a.central point for the receipt of such h'oiiccl Notice shall incjud.e the'
idchliilcatidn;hunibel^s):of each affected grant;

(f) Takingbnc.ofthc fbllowfng actions, within 30^ca|endar day.s of recciying-notice-under
sy>Raragniph (dX2),.wiih respect.-to any cmployee-N^^o is sd convicted-

(I.) T^lng appropriate personnel action.agaihst.such an.cin'plbyc'c;.up;tb arid.including"
lenhihaYmn, consistent. wiih;thc rcquireriicnts.of.thc Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
.amended;or-

(2). .Requiring such crrip.loyec to participate satisfactorily in a-.drug abuse assistance or
rehab'lHtaiion pixigram approved for such purpbscs.by'p federal,.^te", or Jocal health, law
.chforccrncril, or other app.ropriate agency..

(g) Making a gbodifaith effort to continue to malntQin.'.a drug-frcc-workplace-through implcmciitotion
ofparagraphs (a),vCb), (c), fd).;Ce)", and .(0-

,(B): The grantee moy'.insertvin the space.iprbyided; below th.e s'.iie(s) forT.he,iKrfpniiahcc ofwp.rk donc in
conriection'Wi.th'.thespeci'fic-grant.

•Rlaccpf PcrfpiTri.aricc (sffeei address, city, cpuniy,.stale, zip code) (list eachJocatibn)

.Check Q.if therp arc vyp/kp.lacc§*o.n file-that .arc not identincd here.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ;C)ctbbcn I., 2b20.tp Septembcr.30. -2Q2 I
Contractor-Name PcrlcKi.co.vcrcd.by this.-Ccrtifi^.tion

.John A, Manning; Chiief Executive-Officer
Name and-Ti'tlc of AuiHonzcd Cbhtractbr-Represeniative

.lA
r RcDresCTla'tivc Sij

•9/9/2020

Coniradfbr RcpreseAi'la'tivc Signature Date
^  P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INin ATIVES

STANDAJtD EXHIBIT E

Tlic Cpntrac'ipr ia'cntified in Section 1.3 .of thcGcncrai .Provisions aerecs.to.coiTiply with 'the provisions of
Sectionj-I9"otPabiic;'U\v:ra wiac-CuidaAcc. fpr.Ncw lCcSlribtibffS'Oft.i:^.bbyi>g;.:anjd 31
U-.'SC. |'352i and farther agrees;tp,have theContractor's representative, as idcntlfied.in Sections T.!'-! and 1.12 of
the General Provision^ cxecute'the foiibwing Ccptlficatibn:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

yS i)EFARTMENT pF-^ AND HUMAN SERVICES ̂ CONTRACTORS
pS DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMjSWpF.ApiUlC - GpISTOAtTpRS
us:departm ent of labor
USDEPARrnVlENT

Programs (rridi.catc'applicablc pro^rani cbyei^)'
LIHEAP-

ContracFPcriod: October l,-2020.to'September-30,-2021' . . . ^ :

Thc-.undcrs'ign^ certifi'es-.tp the best:-of his or her. knowledgcand belief that :-

(I:) Nbifcderal fipp.rQpHa.ied;ftnds haye-bt?cn paid .or.will be pajd by or on l:«half:qf the:undersigncd, to any
person for-influcncing or attehiptihg'.toiiirucncc-an.officer ohcmplby.eiB.of.ahya^ aVmembcr of
Congress, an'bfficer or employee of Congress, or an employee, of aimcmbcr of Cbngrcss -in connection
•with thfe:a>iixlih|-.otahy cpntinuatio,nvrcn<\yal-,;am,ehd^^ or .rnpdi.ll'caU.pn of any
Tcderalrcqntracii'^ntv.loanj or coqpcrativc:agrccmcnt (and byspccific.mention sub^^antc.c or su.b-
corilraclbr).:

(2)' If any;f\inds.other than federal.appropriated funds'havc bccn paid.d'rwilj.bc paid;io,-any p'efsb.ri .fbr
irifiucn'cmg'.brdtt^pting influence "ah'offi^rbr .employee of .agency, ameniber of .Congress, an.
officer or employee of C'ongrcss; or'^ employcc of a mcnjbcr.oT.Cohgressari'x^^^^ this"
frfcraicontiratt; grant, ipa.n.,,o.f.cpppc,rat.i.ye-.agr«fnent\(|md_b;y.specificfpcn'tm siibr
c6i'itractof-), (lic:undersignc.d shall,cdmprcte an'd subrni.t.S.tah'dard.Fonm LLL, "Disclps.u'rc Fpnrn;t.p Report
Lbb.byin'/viiji.aC^ instru.clipnsi attachedfand ideniified as Standard Exhibit E-i..

(3) TT).e undereignedlsha)^ f^iij re" ihatthc.language of this ccriifica'iion .be included in the.award document
for'subawards'at-all tiers (including:subc6htracts, s,ub.-grants, an cb.ritirata'uhdcr.'griEutts. l.o?.hs, and
cb"6pcrativc;,agr^iTients);imd thatall subrecipicnis shall ccrfifyand.di'sclose accordingly.

•This.ccTlirtcati'ori is:a mat'e.rifl.rreprcsehlatidh Which reliance-wa's^^^^^^ Ui.is.^ansaction was
made.orcriicrcd.intq". Submi"sTiPnp.flfiljf,cpWifiicatip i$:.a".p>dr^qyisitp:<pr nt^jh'g:br^n.tbri.ng.!rtfi thls-liansaclion
;imp.Qs.e.d''by S.cctipn" 052; Titleiili U.S; Code. Any person whoTails toTile thc;rcquired:ccrtificatioii shall be
.subjeci^.td^ civil'pcnalty of'noi-lcss than-$;l04000 and-.not more tlVah,$:|00.,0(K) for cach.su.ch failure-.

"  ChlefExcc.utive'Officcr;r I I . yrf «Ty>i)4«u^ ^—: . ' : — -, .
.jCpntroctor^epresenuilive'Signaturc .Contractcr.S'..Represeritati.ve,Title'

'john.A-.-..Klannlng 9/9/2020-
Cpnifaclpf
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF StRATEGlC INITIATIVES

STAI^ARD EXHIBIT F

TlicConlractor^ideuiified.in Section 1.3 df the Gencral.Provisions agr^s-.to cdmpjy VitHUhe provisiqns of
Executive! efmcifc.o^.lire-Pi^'sideiit, Fx^tivcs-Qrider 1-2549 and 45 CHR. Part 76Tcgarding Debarment; Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Malierey.iiniR'rth'er-agrees to have thcCoritractbr's tej)rtSehlatiyc;;las-id^ntiifica In.
Sections 1. l" I and 1.12 of the General Provisions,- execute the rollowing Cerlincation:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING PEBARM ENT, SUSPENSidN, AJW OTHER
RESPGNSiBtLlTy MATTERS - PI^AHV COVERED TRANSACTIONS

fnslrucnpnsfor C.erti/icalion

(1) By signing and.submining-lbis-.proppsal.(con'trac0.th.e p,rosp,ective primary participant.-i's prpvidi.ng the
certffic^tiqh.set out.belowi

(2) The inability of a pci^n.to provide the certification .required bcio.wwlll;npt,necc«.arily're.su(l in dcniisl of
participalipn .in .this (^ye.rcd transaction. If necessary, the prospective partlcipahl-shall submit an
explanation of'why it cannot-providc-.the certification". The certification pr .e.xpjanatio.n.'will considered.in
conriccti'ori with"tiic-NH Offi«.pf Stretegib Initiatives' determination whether to enter into this.o^saction.
However, failure of the-prospcctive-primafy participant to furnish apchificatioh or ah cxp.lahaijon.shalj
disqualify such persb.n,frOm'p.a.ilicipation;in

(3,) Thc'ccriificotibn in this.clfluse.is a,material reprcsehtatlon of'fact upon whic.h reliance was placed ?^hcn OSI
dcterrriined to eh.ter;:i"ntp;th.is tran^ Ifil'is later delennined.thai the.prospectivc primary participant
knowingly rehdefed-ah.cffQhebusiccni.fi in addition tp.'p.thcr rcmeiiics aya'ilable'io.ihc federal
govcrnmeht, 0$1 may tcnn.inaic Ihis.lransaction for cau« or default.

(4) "TThe prospccuyc;primary partici'pafit shail prbvid.c immcdiatc. w.fi.lten notic.e to ̂ .e 05l agency to whom" this"
propOsar(0.n|ract) i?..subrnitted:^^^ ihc-prosRCCtivc primaiy participaril lcanislhal its.ccrtificalion
was erroneous .when submitted of has ,become crfoheous^'by reason bfchahg-^ ci"rcum5^nce.s,

(5) 'Thctcim.s "covered tfans.actton;"'''debarrcd,'' "suspended,'-'-"ineligible,'""lower tier cbvcrcd.tronsaciioh."
"participant," "^rsbh,V''*pnm"ary'coyered tjrari'sactibri,'*'"pnn"cip"ai,'' ''prbpo'salj"'a'.nd 'Voluntarily .excluded,'
as used in ibLs-ciause; havc>the mcanings-.set out in the Defihitiohs.ahd Cbvefagc sWtiofi'spf .th'e rules'
impldihehtih"g'ExccutiVe'Gji^er;i,25.49; <5'^eFR ,Part 76; -

(6) The prcspcctiyeiprimaryparticipant agrees bysubmitling fhis proiMsal {conti^tphat.sfr(Hi.l.d..tH proposed
coS'cred.Uinsacliori Ife criieitd into, it shall "ifqt knowingly enter into any lower-tier covcrcd.transactibn with
a pcr^n vyho is debited,- suspchdtid^ "declared :incliglble, or voluntarily excluded:fTO"m ■pafticipati6"h;m,thiis
covered u^saction, unless.authorizcd by-PSl.

(.7) The prpspe'ctjyc .primary participant further agrees by submirting.this proposal that it Svill ihcliidc the claii.s.e
titled "Ccfiificatibri Regafdih'g Debarmeh.t, Syspensi9h,,incligibi.l.i.fy and yolunUry. Exclusion f Lower Tier
Covered tfansactibnSi'''providcd by;OSI, withoul modificalion, in all.16wer.lier boYered tfah'MctiOns ahd.in.
all solicitatiphs'ibf iowef.liercbvci^d ti^sactions.

(8) A participantfin a co.vcrc<|'tronsaction--mBy rely upon a certification of a' prospeetivc;participant in o.lower tier
covered ttansaccio.n that it.is;noi:delwrred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily "excludea from Ihb covered
transaction, unless itkiio.ws thatllie certiftcatjon is erroneous. A p.tulic.ip.anV.moy dec.ide-ihe method and
fi^uencyby-.w^ithiltdctcrmiries.the'eljgibility p.f.itsp.rinc-ipais Eatih.panicjp^t mayi.butiis not required
l"Oi check d^e Nbnrprocurcmcnt List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothihg-^cOh.tai'hcd in^^e fp.reg^ shall bc'conspued iorequire establishmcntof a systcm of records:in order
ip rcndcr in good faith.'lhe.certification required.by.this clause. The.knowjedgc and i.nfpi:mati.oho.fa.
pa.iili.eipah.t i'sm.ot^cOuirc^^^ excccd.that Avhi.ch is normally possessed by.a,prudeni.person;"in 'lhc ordinary ^
coursc-of business dealings.

(10) Except for iransaclipris aulhorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant :in a c.overcd
Ininsactibn knoyvingly.cniere-irito a-lpwcr tier covered Iransaction with a" person-wlio is suspended,.debarred,
InciigiblCj or vplunt^jly excluded.from paiticipalion in this transaction, in addition to b.tKcr remedies
avallatile to the red.crai.goy.crnmen.tj.OSI may Icrminaic this tronsacllon for cause or dcfauli.

.  . R37'E*hibitsD tl'ru.H
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION^ AW PTHtR
RESP0NS1BTLITY NATTERS - PRIMARY COyERED. TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Ce'HiJtcatio'n.Regarding Debnr.iueiiti Suspension, and Other
Responsib'ilif)! Matters - Primary. Covered Transactions

{,1). The. prospective primao' participant certifies tp the best of its knowledge and bcliefj that-itand its
principals:

(a) art" not prescntly.debqjTed,- suspended, proposed for debarment,.declared.ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded frbifi.cbvcfed transaclipris by any federal department or'agency;

(b) have not-wilhin a threc-yeaf pe'riod preceding thislproppsal (Contract) been convicted of or had a
civil j'udgment.rendered agamslthcm for commissipn of fraud or for axriminal.offcnse in
connection Nv.ith obtaihi'ngj attentpting to.obtain, or pcrforrning.o public/(fedefd,-staleiOr Ipcal),
trahsaciloii ora cdriiract:uddcra public transaction;.violation of Fcderal.or Statc-aniii^si statutes
or commission ofembezzlement,'theft, forgery, bribcryj falsificatiorvor.dcstrtctibri'df records,
maldrig'false statements, or receiving stolen properly-.

(c) arc not prcrthtly ih'dicled for o.thch.Vise criminally orxivjlly charged.by a goyerrtmMial entity
(federal, statc-.or'local) with commission of any of the offehses chumcratcd.ih 'p^gi^h,^ of
this c<^iFica.tipn;'and

(d) hav.e'ridt within a tHree-ycaf-perlbd prtceding^thisjappi.iwtipn/proposal hadmne pr:more publjc
(federal, state or:Iqcal) trajisactioris for cause or default.

(2) Where the prpspcctlyc prlraajy^p^icipanl is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
ccrtificotion,;such prospccii.ve particijpah.t shall attocK on.expl^ation to this pfoppM) (contract).

Certification Regarding.Oebdrrhe/it, Susp;ehsidn,.Jneiigibility and
.yoluhtn^/^Cfu^^^ r Lower Tier Covered TransaciionSx

(T6 8e/Suppiied loLower Jiier Participantsj

By sign'ingandsubmitbngthis-lower Uef-.pr6jp6^.(c6ntrtct),.the prospective; lower,derpadicip^t,- a? dcfinedin
45 ,CFR Paff76,.cediries to'tlie bcsi of its,kn.owiedigc and'telief.that it and, its principals:-

i

(a). art hbt prtsently .dcb«.rred,:Siisi^^^ proposed for debarmcnt, decltu-ed ineligible;.or ydluhtanly
.excluded,'from participation in this trahsocti6h.by'?ny fycral dcpartmerit oV.agenc^^^^

(b) where the.prpspectiye.jpwci tier participant i's unable to certify to any of tI,te'above, such
prpsFwctiye-participaftrshail attach an.expianalion to.lliis proposal .(cbhtraSl).

THe,prospiective lbwe"r tier participant further agrees by submitting this prcposal (coniraci):ihalni.will:ihc!ude iKis
clause cntitie.a *'G;Crtificali'bn Regandrng Dcbarm In.eJ.igibility, and VoiuntaTy &(cluslbn.-.Uwer
Tier Covered Transa.ctions;" .without modification ih.dll.lowcr licfxbvcrcd transactions andiiniaM solicitations for
lowei>tibr*covcred transactioris.

Chief Executive Officer
.jj^Cbniractof-kepfese^itati.ve;Sjgnatufe Cbnifactor'.s Rcprescntatlye, Title

John A. Manning. 9/9/2020
Contractor Name Date

;P37 Exhibils D thru, H
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NEW HAMPSmRE OFFICE OF STRATECIC INltlATlVES -

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTrFICATlONREGARDING THE

AMERICANS.WITH;t>ISABIUT!ES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section .13 of the G.cncralPrpvisions agrees by signalurc.orihe Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gcnerai.Pro.visiohs, to execute,the fcljowin'g
certification;

By sighing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Cpnlracior agrees to make rcasonablejefibftsio
comply with alUpplicoblc provisions-of the Ahicricahs with Disabilities Act of 1.990,.

ContractPr^Rcprcsqh.totiyc .SJg^^

Chief-Exccutiyc'Officcr-

John A. Manriintt

Coniractor.'s-Reprcsehtativ.e Title

■9/9/2020

Contractor Name Date

1.1HBAP2I
C1-DAi9J.56S
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATECIC INITIATIN'ES

SJANDAIUI. EXHIBIT H

CERTIFiCATtGN
PubJicLflw. 103-227,,Part C'

ENVIRON^NTAL tOBACeO SMOKE

In .accordance with Part C of.Public Law 10^227,. the "ProrGhildrcn Act 'of \ 994\ smoking may not be
permined in any portion ofany indoor facliity owed or feguliirly u^d for the provision of health, day care,
educatVon, or library'services to children under the age of 18, if-the services arc funded by federal programs cither
directly or through state or local govcmmehls-. F^eral prograirns inciude grants, cooperative agjwmenis, loans
and loan.guar^toes, and coiilracB. The Iaw doe,S'not:apply to children's services prbyidcd in pflyatc.residchccs,
facilities funded solely byMedicare or Medicaidtuhds, arid.pd'riiohs of faciliiics.uscd for inpaticnt drugpr
•alcohortreaiment'.-

Thc~;aboyC"language must be included.in;^y subawards Hiat contain provisions for,childrch!s scrviccs-and tlial;a,II
.sub-grantees shall cerbfy compliance.adcofdi'rigiy. Faiiufc;.tb;Cpmpiy with.tlte prpyisions'pf tHis law.may result.m
■thcjmppsition of aciyjl monetary .penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

^ ^ ^Cpniramor Rcproscntative Signature:
Chief Executive GFTiccr

Cbntrect6r',s,Rcprese'hlaliyc'TI|le

John A. Manhine 9/9/2020

Contractor Name Date

UHEAPJI
cwAJm.ifA
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PAP Approval to Obligate

STATE

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO GBUGAJE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE-ie

Exhibit

TOTAL

ICONTRACTED.BUDGET* ,538,220:00 - S;646.370.00 4,S82:60: ;357;200.00. 6,546,372,60 |

EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVldUSlV OBLIGATED.

0.00.

0;00

0.00

0.66
0.00

0.00

0.00

0:00

•Q.OO

0.00

THIS APPROVAL'TO OBLIGATE; . .600: : .0.00 • .. . O.OOv . 0:00 • 1,165.55.1:00 ]

•TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NQT AOTHbRiZEP TO OBLIGATE
0:00

■538,226.00
1,165.551.00
4i486,819.00

0:00
4..5'82.60

0.00
357.200.00

1,'165:551.00
5i380;821:60

BMCA

Flrcl 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS. . ASSURANGE16; "TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET 9S;663:Q0.- .1-G03;686:00 : ■  liOOO.OO ; 69,960:00 .1.170;209:00-. j
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 6.00 .0:00

0:00
. 0:00

ITHIS APRROVALTO:OBUGATE. 0.00' i 207,112.00 -■ \0.00 .. . 0;00 207.i;i2;oo 1
TOT/V. AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORtZEO T.OOBUGATE

■  ■ OiOO
.95.663,00

207,112.00.
795.474.0p.

o.po
1.006,00

0.00
69,960.00

207,112.00
963.097:00

SNHS

.First.7/1^0i'9- ADMIN. . FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE.16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO BUDGET " 163.777:00 . 1,718.152:00 ; ijOOO.CO .8j4i220;0Q- "1^967^149.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBUGAtED . 0:00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
.  . 6:00

ITHIS APRROVAL.TO OBLIGATEi ,  0.00 . ; , GSA.STSlOO . .0.00, 0.00 354,678:00.;
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT authorizedto obugate

,0:00
163,777.00

'354-.57.B.00,
1.363.574.00

0.00
1,0.00.00

0.00
84,220.00

354.578,00
1,6l'2j57i'.p6

SCSi
First 7/1/2019 .ADMIN. . .. FA PROGRAM .. SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOT/^.

ICONTRACTED BUDGET' ' ' 83,835:00:. "■.■.:. I879,501.00 -; .• .  825.00' - .. .•:$4;960:00 • 1.029:121:00; 1
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLYOBLIGAtED 6;oo 6;ob. 0.00 0:00

0.00
0.00

{THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 6.00 ... ' L. 181.604.00 ' 0.00 . oioo - 181,6(^i:.0p;! J

NOT Authorized to obligate 83,835.60 697,997.00 825.00 64i956.60 8A7;617;00

CARSC
Fifit 7/1/26i'9;

ICONTRACTEO.BUDGET
EXPECTED BUDGET
PRgVIQUSLY-;OBLiGATED.

ADMIN. FA PROGRAM. •SEAS ASSURANCE 16
'64;676:00. 1 ;573,593:00,. 757:60" S5;110:00

■TOTAL
■684:136:60. ~|

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00
6.00.

o:oo _  •,118.373:0.0. 0:00,. ;0i00. 118,373.00

TOTAL.AVAILAB.LE.TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORU^D TO OBUGATE

0.00
54,676.06

118,373:00
455,2i26.'00

0.00
767.60

0:00
S5;>10:00

118;373.00
666;763.60

tCCA
Flfsl.7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS' -ASSURANCE re TOTAL

ICONTRACTEO.BUDGET , ' 140,269.00- :• • 1;471;538:00 • 1.000.00 .. 'i82i950.00 1;696;767:00 |
expected BUDGET
PREVIOUSLYOBLIGATED

i

0.00 - 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00
0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE o:oo; . - .. i303,984.00. .. ' /o.oo^ ■  ,'.0:00 V303;984;00. i
TOTAL-AV/MLABLE'TO OBUGATE
NOt.AlJTHORIZEb TO OBUGATE

0.00 '
140,269:00 '

303,984.00.
1.16.7;554.00

0.00
1,000.00

0.00
82,950.00

303.984:0.0
1.391.7t3!p0

LlHCATJl
CFDA#93.568.

P37[c:d^l
Cnntrecior Inhiafi™' jl

Dale:



NEW H^PSHIRE OFHCE OF STRATEGiC INITIATIVES.

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

GERTIFIGATION REGARDING THE FEpipRALrFUNDING.AGGpyN
AND TjyU^SPARENCV ACT (FEATA) COMPEIANCE

The Federal Furidifi j Accouhlability and Transpiuwcy' Act (FFATA) -requires prime awardecs- of
individual federol grants equal to or grcatcr- than. J25,000 and awarded on or after Ckfober I,.2010;-. to
report on. dam related to cxccuuve compcnsauon and associated firsl-ticr sub-grorits'.of $25,000 or more.
If ihc^initiaVaVv^ is" M $25,000 buVsubsequerii gnmt modifiMtions rcsulfin a total award equal-to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as.of.the date of the award,

lri-tfcMrdancc:with 2 CFR Part.T70 (^^tmg-SubawiKtJ-anJ-£xecutrve Cdmjieksdliohjn/ormM the
New-Hampshire Office bf.Slrttcgic initiatives rnusi rcport Oic fpllowing infpnnation for any subawifd of
;cohtnict:award subjecl.to thc FFATA rcponmg rcquifcmehts:

\) Nanic of entity
7) Amourit:of:awafd
3) Funding-agency
4) NAlCS.cpdcfOr wntracis / CFDA.prpgram number for:grants.
5) Program source i
65 Award;lille dc.^riplive ofIhepurposc oflheTunding action
7) Location of the cnti^
8) Principal place of'performance
S) Hniquc/identjficrqf.thecntity-.C^ S)
lO) Tola! cofhp<msatibh-4nd;oamc5:df the top fi«c . . .

a. More iban'SOV^-of-ennual.^oss revenues are^fronVdie'.F^dcral.govcrn.mcnt and'lhpse
,revcnucs-we grater .than $2SM annually, and.

b. -Compehsation inforinatipn iViipi alrwdy ayajlablc dirpugh:reporting;tP the SEC.

Prime grMfreclRicnts must submit FFATA-fequifc'd dafa by llie.rehd of the month plus 30 days in which
•ihc;awafd or award amendment is .made.

The Conlractor identificdah Section 1..3 pf ihe General PrPyisipns agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Eederal Fundrng Accountab.iliy-and Transparency Act; Public .Law "109.-282 and Public Law .110-
-252} and" 2 GFR-. Part' 170 {Reportihg Subdward and Exje'ctuhf^ CbmpcjifaOpn- Information^ and
fUrtHcnagrcfcS; to haye" the Contractor's ■rcprescnlaiive, as: identified-in SKtipns -.i;..! 1. and i-.l2 of the
Geheral Pfpyisions, cxccutc the following Certification:

tIic i^low named Cqntractor agrecs to provide.nccdied information as oudined aboyc to the New
Hamp'sKJfie Offidc qf Strategic Iriitialiyes and to comply with till applicable.p"fbv.isidns Of the Federal
•FihahciaLAcccuritabllity an'dTfahspafency-Act.

john-A--Mamiing>Ghie££3tiiciUu:eJ0£Eic!CiL
.(Gontrtctor-Represenlativ/Signature) (AuthorUcdGpntractpr Representati.vc Name & Title)

Ortnfhw^ct^m Cftmmnnity Ihr- .Q/Q/9fl2f).
(Contractor Name)

Cohu-aciO
Date ^
Page I of-i
LIHEAKl GFbA«93.568



NEW HAMPSlilRE OFFICE OF SXRATEGTC INitiATJVE.S

STANDARD EXHrBlT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified.in Section k3 of the General Provisions, I certify that 'the- responses to the.
.b^low;likcd qucs.U6ns-are.if^c;aitd act

k X^e DONS nunibcr fbr your, entity"is: 081 25;l 381

2. In your.busincsisjo'r.organizatioh'sip'recedihgcdhipletcd fiscal year, did,yQur.busincss Qr'organiMliqn
receive'(I);80 percent-or morcof your annual gross revcnue in U.S. f^eralconlracts, subconirocis, loans,
grants; .siib-grahts, 'and/or doopcratiye agreemenls; and (2) $25,000,000 or.rhore. in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contract,;subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO :YES'

if the answer to #2 abdve;ts NO, stop here:

If.tbc answer fo:^2 above is YESi plcasc.answcrth'e.fbUdwin

3. Does the.public haye access to information abourthecbmpcnsalibn .ofthc executives in your busihcss-
or .organ iiatipn,through; period ic rcpqrts'filed' urfdcr section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sccuriiics.Exchange Act
of .l.93'4 (1.5 U.S.C.7.8m(o), 78^d)j.o'r ;sec.li6n..6ip4 of the; rnlernai.'R'eyenu'e:Gode .of

NO. .YES

If thc ans^v.cr to #3.«bovc is YES,-stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer.thcJfdllowIng:

4. Thc;namcs. and cornf^hsation of the.fivc most.hjghly cpmpenMtcd.ofTicers in.your business or
org^ization.are as follows:

•Name:' Amount:'

•Name: Amount;-.

Name;, ^ Amount:.

•Nanie: A.mo.unt:..

Name: Amount:.

'Contj^tof Iniiislij

on- '
Date ^n}2^

UHCAR2l.CFOAft93.S68



State of New Hampshire

Depiaftment of State

CERTIFICATE

•1. Wilt'iam.M. Gardncr.Secremiy ofSBie of ihc Suuc of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat SOUTHWESTERN'
COMMUNITY SERV'IGES; iNC-i U a New Hanipshire Nonprofii Corporeiion r^isicrqd',ib b'usiricM m'.Ncw'

Hampshire on May'1.9; ,i.965^t'.furthfif certify, tto-all.fees aW.docurnchB required>y ihe S«rediiy,d'f State\s*oiT^
received and .is in good.iaai^ing^es .fb"'** ofTice is.concerned.

,Busirress iO: 6SSI4

dcruficaicNumbcr.'OiDO48940W

SI Ofi
%

o
09

A
%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hdttb;$ef,my hahd'imd cai^'to-be

(he of thelStnte-brNcwHampshirCj

thisflbUi day'of-.Apnl'i.^.B. 2020.

William M.-'Oardncr

SccreUf)' of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

.(Corpdratc.Aulborit}')

Kevin Wattersoh i r:hairpersQn.Qr'_Southwestem Community. Services Inc.
(Name)

(Hcrein^er ihe '"Corporalion"), a New HampsKIre: corporalion, hereby ccrtify thai:;(l.) I am thc duly

■elected and acting Cicric/Secreiary/Officcr of thc Corporation; (2) J-maihtain;.and,hav.e'cust6dy ahd:am familiar
wJlh the rhmulc bboVs ohhc'.Corpo (3,),.Iiam duly authorized to issue ccrtjficXcS;\yith.rcsppct ip the
contents of $uch.'book5;=,(4) thniihcBoard;.6f Pircctdrs of the Corporalion ;haveauthdfized,.on' a/l-SQOl&.such
puthpnty to be in fprce.pnd efTccfuniil September 30. 2021. (Dale)

(Gonirtautrmifiaiion dale)

'l'hc;pCfSOn(s);hdtding;ihc ticlowlisted positions) ̂ -authorized (p.cxcciJte and dellvpr on .bch^f of the
Corporation luiy contract or other, instrument for.ihe sale of products and service's:.

John A. Manning CEO
"(Name) (l?OSi,ti<^)

(Name)- (Rosiilon)

(5) The meeting of th'e B.oard of Directors held .in accordance with New-HampsHire
(Statc.orincorporsiion)

law and.the by-laws bf:ihc C^tiX)ra.tion: Vnd (6) said',aiJlhorization has not been modified, amended-or.rescinded,
and conlinucs'in:full forccand.cfreot as of the claic.h'crebr.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,.1 have hereuhto sct-fhy hand sis the Cicrk/Sccre,ta^/(Dffi.cc,r of th;c COn?P.rafion.this
^  day of . 20 ^0 ■

ST'ATE.0F ̂ Ncw!H^pshirc_
CO.ijNfY :QF '.Gh'eShi'it

\/^A-nA\j/vIa. a
(Dl.cric/Siecrcti^/OfRcer

'Of) ihis.i day'df "Seotcmber ^ 20 20 before me; Maraarc'tvFreeman:
vyhp acknowledged

of SouiJiwe'stc'm Commtmiiv Seh/iccs Inc •,.a co^ratco'n
the; undersigned OfTicefi perspnally apixarcd Kevin Wiillefson
h^r/hirncnlfmhethe BonrdChBirPcrson oT SouUiwestcr
•and that she/he as such officer being authorized to do. so, executed the fpfegping
:ihstn!m'cn!.for tke purptoses therein, contained.

IN. WITNESS WHEREOF-, I'hereuntp set.my hand and pfficijal seal,

COMMISSION
=  : EXPIRES • =
I  bee. 6,2022 ; a

ira m'Datc:.

"rM\V



^^2/ GERtlFICAIE OF LIABIUTYJNSUF^NCE DATecwuoommf)

8/8/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE. IS ISSUED AS MATTER OF. INFORMATION ONLY .AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS URON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTinCATE DOES NOT'AFnRMATIVEtY OR NEGATTVELVAMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE-COVERAGE AFFORDED" BY" THE POUCIES
below; THIS CERTinCA;TE\OF .INSURANCE p6E8 NW^ TXE ISSUING: INSURERS), AUTMORiZED
REPRESENfA"nV£-.OR* PROOUCER. AND'THE CERTiFICATfe HOLDER.
"IMPORTANT: If the cortlFeato holder It an AOOITIONAL INSURED, tha pollcy(ita) mutt'bo andonad. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED,. i>ub)ect to.
tha tsrhts'ahd condiUdni-of tho policy; cartalh pdUclas may r^ufro an-endortamanL. A^statomont-on.thb caitlflcata doas not confer, rights to the-

pncoucet

Clark • Mortensonlnsurance

P.O. Box 606:

Keene NH 03431

CONTACT

rfflL PHV-M3-3S2.2121 IKc;Mai:603^7-W91
AM>iif;«<i- C3r24adnilnAd8rk-morten9on.com

iNsuaeitrsi APFOtttMa covntAOfi NAICe

•NStmen a : PtiUadofoMa Insurance Cemeanv
SOUTMAGSTESNCOK

".'Southwestern Cdrhmunity Seivices'lnc."
'PO-Box'603
Keaha'NH 03431

iNSuiieK8: Maine Emniover Miituti Insuranca'Co.

wsuMa c i

wsiinea 0:

MSUnCflE:

wsuMPa r ■-

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF 'IMSURANCE USTED BEtOW K/^VE.BEeM ISSUED TO THE INSUREp NAMEp. AeoyE;FOR.T^.PpUCY PERIOD
IMOasTED NOTWTMSTAWblNO ANY REOUJREMENT' TERM'OR'CONOmON OlF ANY' CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUttENT-WTK-RESRECT TO W*<ICM'.TH1S
CERTIFICATE "MAY-BE ISSUED OR MAY-PERTAIN/THE INSURANCE.AFFpRDEO. BY THE.POllCIES-OESCRlBEp HEREIN fS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS ANO.CONOmONSOF'Su6l POLlCIES..UMfTS.SHQWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED.BV PAjgClAIMS.

MM
m .'nfpeof iMtuRANCC iwsiiwi

OOKMCRCIAL CCNCMAL UASturY

~ I c'lAWMMM I X l ocCUR

COfV aCOREGA^ IMT Afvies PER:
■POLO f~1 HDlOC
.oTMew: .

POtlCV MWflgW
firorRr

WMPOfYVYYl
.WJEVUA.
fuwpCMYYinn LAOTt

GACHOCCURUNCe
TSWXSrrCTCTTTEO
EaEHSeaJEtimctaeelL
ugoexP(»nr<

pewsoMALrAWKmRv

CENEAAL XCORCQATe

PflOOUCTB-- COMP«OP AOO

TBSBiREBTBanKDr
«lfW^

.<i<'Lom.oeb
T leo.eoo

lijxo

11.030,000

•»LeoeiOOO
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X .ANY.AUTO
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SCHEDULED
•AUTOS:
MON-OWHEO
AUTOS

eOOAY WJURY (Ptir^kOdM)
PAOPeRTYOAMAOS' """
IP>f»MtiNrO

UmSLLA UAS

onst'Lue'

IE

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAM

EACH OCCURRENCE stjoo.ooe

AQQWeOATE i> Looo.eoo

RgTEMTIOwSfOflnn
tWORXERSeOHPO'tAIIOU. .
ANO'ewKOYUrUARlUrr y
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OFnCERMEHflEReXCLUOeDT-
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{■MMrrkiNH]
■.m; mIkum «mP . . . ..
oesaMPTIOK M.ORERATIOWS bNair

E-L. CXSCA5S. EA' d^LOvEE siofteeo

£:L.DiS£ASfi t ROUCY UMIT t tog OOP
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'Wbh^rs ComperisatJcin'IswsVp^-for'tKe sute ol:'NH
All Offioar* are indudad

ma Ml BWwayM. m»t *• mucam b m«aw«i

CANCELLATION

State of Uew Mamp3hl/:e
Office of Strategic' I'niUDtives;

SHCiULO ANY Of THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES.BE CANCELLED'BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE TKEAEOF.: NOTICE WIU. ^BE OELIVEReO IM
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISrONS;

Johnson HaH-
107 Pleasani Street
GbrkwdNH03301-^1

1

AUTMOMZeORCEMRNTAnve

A'CORD 25(Z0.14/P1) TheiACORO' name.-and.ibgo are'reglstered marks of ACORO
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Leotie, ,
McDonnell
&RobetM

To the Board of Directors of ' a:KTiiiHi)ruiti.iCM.u>UMAN'TS
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. • nokhkujmw

^. ., .. • i.ti.s'COkoKeene. New Hampshire wthaaj

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'-RERORT

■Retfo/t"om</)ftP/hanc7fl/^SVafe
We have~iudiled 'the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31. 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes (o the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31. 2019.

MiBhaaemeht's.Resbonsfbllltv fdJ! the Financial Statements
'Management Is responsible, for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A ̂ )d/f6^s^'ffesooh^5/b7//ftir
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing starxJards generally
accepted in the United Slates of America and the standards appllcabie to ftnancial audits
contained in Govemmenf Auditing Standards,'Issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment. Including the- assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the eritity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. (

1
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Leone, ,
McDonnell

Roberts
i-affii-A'j aAav.Tiy

To the Board of Directors of o-:i:'niia)!-imi.i(:Ai:couNTA.\TS
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.,.

Jl * ' rn«OKJ ■
Keene. New Hampshtre jirswrnM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Rfioorion.the. Finandal 'Statements
We have "audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire rtonproflt corporation) and related companies,
which comprise Ihe consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31. 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31. 2019.

MohBaemeriCs Reshonslbllitv forithe Financial Sfafemenfs

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this Includes the design, Implementation, and maintenance of Internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

AudUom- Resddnslbllltv

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the. standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performirtg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgmenl, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making,those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of Ihe consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we-have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Oolriton

'In our'opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes In their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Repori on St/mmeWzetf Cbm'pa/iaf/vre .
We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2016 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements In our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31. 2018, Is
consistent. In all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been
derived.

Other-Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanylnQ schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code'of Federal Regulaiions (CFR) Part 200, Unlfoiw Adrftlnlsfrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functtonal Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standanis generally
accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the Information Is fairly stated, In all
material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

idther Reoortlna Reaulred bv Gmremmeni Auditfna SiGndards
In accordance v^th Government Auditing Stahd'erds, we have also Issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Soulhwestem Community Services, inc.'s Internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on Intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an Integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Novembers. 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUfl^EStlRN

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MArji.-ZOIB AN'0^20T8

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receiveble

Inleresl receiveble

Total current oseols

PROPERTY

Land end buildings
Vehldea and equipment
Furniture end fbdures

Total property

Less eccumuiated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds
Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

iLIABILmES AND NET ASSETS:

CURRENT UABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expanses
Aocruad payroll and payroti (axes
Other ounent llablfldas
Raftmdable advances

Interest payable
Current portlen of long term debt

Total current llablliUes

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long term dobL less current portion shown above

Total tIablUtles

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total UablllUos and net essels

2019 2016

$  662,167 $  1,086,695
•  1,245,626 1,059,922

51,722 35,019
112,000 112,000
45.547 45.&4?-

2.337.282. '2i3d9i3fi3

19,168,701 14.438,178
554;076 549,305
220.291 39.617

'18.064;05B '  15:027.100

.7.938.217 4.6B0.952

10;14B^4S

196,728 68,706
59,102 168,523

640,334 517,653
62,996 51.996

364

1.170,544 647.462

•$ .ie;633:667 :S- ■13:332^993

$  391,613 %  124,085
119.620 206.176
233,900 250,692
136.740 135,573
160.994 193,031

49,547
. 227,221 .  ..._2l6.43e

1,341,635 1,126.897

9.086.445 0J273i663

l6;426.d86 g;400:860

4,922.671 3,787,422
.182.918, .144,691

5.105.667 3.932.113

-■$ -15.533.687 13:332:993

Sss Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Ststoments
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;;fiOUTtiyVESTEiWC;OMMUNfn-SERVl

CONSOLIDfTEO STATEMENT OF ACTtVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 201ft

-WITH PRtOR.YEAR.SUMMARIZC-D-COMPARATTVE lNFQRMATION.

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gownment contracts

Pros ram service fees
Remel income

Oavetoper feo Inoome
Support
Sponsonhtp
Interest income

ForgNenesa of debt
Ml3ceker>eous

.. livktnd conufbudons

Total ravenuas and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net easels reiesaed from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program aervloea
Home energy pmgrsms
Education atid nutrition
Homelesa programs
Houstng services
Economic develppmeftl services
Other programs

Total progrsm servicos

Supporting acttvtllea

Management arxl general

Tots! oxpensos

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
- LOSS ON SALE QF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN UMfTED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

RflildsSeba' BssIilEtiEM-.

$ to.672.702 $
2.4S5.40S
995,360

326,556

70.693

7.153
366.849

120.697
241.499

16,300.138

;87;606i

P .=16:396:744;

5.236.463

2,656.630

1.994,672
2.316.865
721.370

■  864.966.

13.829.406

1.680.406

.  15.709.ei2

(313.006)

(6.481)

16.116

(301,433)

3,787.422

..,1.436.662

125,833

125.833

(87.606)

3fl-22S

38.225

36,225

144,691

2010

Total

$ 10.672.702

2.485.405

905.380

452.391

70,893

7.153
366.649

120.697
■  .241:499'.

15,434.069

16:434.989^

.5.238,463
2.859,830
1,094.872
2.319B6S

721,370
894.986

13,829.406

1.680:406

15.709:612

(274!&43)

(6.481)

18.116

(263,208)

3.932.113

1.436.682

2016

Total

11.055.093
1.868,188
601.642
60,000
500,229

105.266

6.959
75.971

100.772
161.852

14.736.992

f14.-73g;8K'

4,647,201

2.630.162
2.172,386
2.046.214
726.119
045.391

13.271.485

•1.749:700 '

15.021.165

(284.173)

(4.663)

jm

(2e6,'944)

3.397.772

fo3:285'

$.. 4.022,e71. $... .182.616. $ S.105.587 •-$ -3.93^1.13:

See Notes (0 Consolidated Financial SUtemenU
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SQim^VygSTERN CbMMUNrry SERWCES. INC. AND RELaTED!COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FdR-tHEYEARggNDEO

2019 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES

ChsnQo in not saaeta S  (263.208) S  (268,644)
AOustmenta to rooonoHo chsnecs In not osaets to
net cash from operating ectMlies:

487;929Doprociatlon and amortization 560,115

Loss on sate of property 0,481 4.563

(Gain) loss on investment in Dmltod perlnorahlpa (16.116) 166

PoiolvoneM of debt (366.649) (75.971)
(Incraaae) decrease in OMtta:

Aocounla receivable (165.604) 265,196

Prepaid expenaM S.S09 (3.436)
Intareat receivable (4.460)
Due from rolalod parties 44.240 66,149

Soourt^ dcposlta 5.151 (2.623)
Incroeso (docraase) In Bablltles:

Accounts peyablo 145,626 (63,220)
Accrued ojqoenm (106.605) (38.863)
Accrued payroll end payrc^ taxes (16,762) 9.857
Other curient llablUtlas 3.187 (13.125)
Refundable odvances (12.637) (44.414)
Interest peyable 49.547

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTtVfTIES (162.672) 268.626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACnVITtES
(Increase) dbcreeae In escrow funds (33.666) 5,646

Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 ,  .

Purchase of property.. (139.717)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVmES .' 41715, (136:645).

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVfTIES
ProcMds from tong term debt 40.048 78.143

Repayment of long term debt - .. (160.029) .. .(112.612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVTTIE6 (.119,961) 136.469).

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ANO.CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,638) 115.212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,066.695 947.176

CASH TRANSFERRED FMM UMITEO PARTNERSHIP 26.230 24.506

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR S  . 662.187. •% i,688:695

Soe Notes to ConsolidAted FInencial Statements

S



SQUh^CTERM'CdMMUNnS^

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTtNUEO)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.-2bl9 ANb:26i8

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

C«8h paM during tho yoar for intorest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTrVITIES

Transfer of easels (ram newty oonaoAdaied LP:

' Prepaid sxponees.

Lend 6f>d buikfirrss

FumllLro ond (bduros

Cash esdraw and reserve funds

Secudty depoalU

Total transforof assets from nevdy consolidated LP

Trartsfer of HaWUes from newty oonsoEdaled LP:
Accounts peysbia
Accrued expertses

Due to related parties
Long term debt

Total transfer of lisbllUlos from nev^ oonsoOdated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consoQdsted LP

Partrtors' capital previously recorded as Investment In related parties

Total trensfer of partnors' capital from newly cortsotidated LP

20(9

.203i408.

S  (22,212)
(2,373,335)
(158,237)
(297.913)
(16.151)

201B

142:467.

(12.328)
(684.504)
(96.338)

(164.110)

$= (2i677;^). s (1v17e-7.47.1

$ 121.699 $ 10.610
20.347 11.199
85.161 _

1.332.075 30^:073

s 1;$59:302{ ■S; 326.082

1.344;77.6; ■i- 877:173

91.^- ;(53:668)

s 1.436:662! s 623:285

See Notes to Consolidated Flnanclsl Statements
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SQUTHWESTERN.CQMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY^ai.ao.lS.AND 2018/

i  note 1 ORGANI^TION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUfflNG PbliCiES'

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) Is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-Income households In the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and Its conservation,
housirtg, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its -related corporations, SOS
MapflQement Corporatlph, SOS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development. Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families In achieving self-sufficiency by helping them

'  overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

IPrihclpies dflCbrisolldatton
The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entitles as Southwestern Community

'  Services, Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entitles through a
'  majority voting Interest In their goveming board. All significant Intercompany
I  Items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated
j  - financial statements.
!  ■ SCS Management Ck>rporatlon
•  • SCS Housing, Inc.
I  ■ SCS Development Ciorporatlon
I  SCS Housing Development. Inc.

• Drewsvllle Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvllle)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19

.■ Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
•  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership.(Keene

East Side)
> Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Corisoildatlon began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
.• Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates. Limited Partnership

(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19



Basls:of Accounting
The corisollclatecj fihahclal stalements of Southweslem Community Services. Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accnjal basis of
accounting In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report infonnatlon regarding Its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

■Net assets .wlthout.donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed- restrictidhs and 'rrtay be expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of .Directors.

..Net, assets-with donor restrictions: -Net assets subject to stipulations
Irn'posed by'donors and graritdrs. 'Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature; tpose restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets wtthout'donor
restrictions and with dohor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information In total but not by net asset class. Such Infbrrhatlon does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in confonnily with generally accepted
accounting principles. - Accordingly, such Information ' should be read In
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized Information was derived.

Refundable Advances
The Orgarilizatloh records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
It Is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it Is
recognized as revenue.

.■lii^KlndiSubbdrt
The Oiganlzetiori records various types of In-kind support Including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received, creates or enhances bng-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by Individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

•Gash-andifcashiEduivalerife
For purposes o'f the statehierit of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
Investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accourits receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at h^ay 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging Interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The" Organlzaflon has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that Is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related Interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 end 2016.

CurrenfeVulnerablirtv/bue to.Gertalri'Cohcentratlons
The' O'rgahizatibh Is., operated in a heavily "regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies'. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding, to pay for the related ~cost, including the additional.

..administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization Is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains Its cash accounts In several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed 'federally Insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses In such accounts and believes It Is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

11



Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the dale of receipt In the case of donated property. The
Organization generaily capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater -than one year. Depreciation Is
provided for using the straight-line method In amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets Is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and Impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depredation expense for the years erxfed May 31, 2019 and 2016
totaled $560,115 and $467,029, respectively.

Ady.ortlslna
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

iRevenuei'RecddnTtldn

and other assets are reported as with donor restrfdlons if they are recelveb with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, If e
restriction Is fuifllle'd In the same period in which the contribution Is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Soulhwedern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal Income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
Income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing. Inc.. SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development. Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $i,G12;604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2016, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable Income and, If not used, will begin to expire In 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2016, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, If not used, will begin to expire In 2022.

12



The (ax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets Is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018;

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance f2l2.766) (:i37.4081

•Deferred tax asset $ $
»

I  Drewsville, Jeffrey, Troy Senior. Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey. and
I  Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,

or provided for these entitles. Earnings and losses are Included in the partners'
federal Income tax-returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file Income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an inoorne tax at the stale's statutory rate.

I  Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, •Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for

I  measuring, the benefits of tax return positions In financial statements.
I  Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position' taken on Its Income
j  tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
'  concluded that no additional provision for Incoms taxes Is necessary In the

Organization's financial statements.

I  Fatr.Value.of Flrranolal Instruments
FASB ASC Topic No.'820-TO, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair

i  value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework In generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value

I  which emphasizes that fair value Is a market4)a$ed rrteasurement, not an
i  ehtlty-speclfic measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair

value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market. Income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant

'  assumptions In fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
j  hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The
j  I hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
;  priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
I  under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available In
active markets for Identical Investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
^  prices In active markets, which are either dlr^ly or Indirectly observable as

of the reporting dale, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable Inputs In
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability Including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short matun'ty of those Instruments.

:New:AccountlnQ:Pronouncemenit

Oh'Au9ust"18r201'6, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities {Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandablllty of net asset classification,
deficiencies In information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
preserfted.

Fuhctl6ha!;Ail6ca'tidn ofi&cbbnses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classiried by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits arid other Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The Indirect cost rate Is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31. 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization" Has a $250,000 revolving-line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest Is due monthly and Is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line Is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31. 2019 and 2018,
the Interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31. 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145.647 $ 154.832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development, Finance Authority, In
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (COFA.
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in rtionthly
Installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank.
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to' New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project Is
sold or refinanced. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 '244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there Is surplus
cash from which to make a payrhent, or untlt
project Is sold or refinanced. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for prindpal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balioon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
Is now due December 2026. Under the
amendment; Interest rate Is 4.94% and monthly
Installments for principal and Interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 201B

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (TO Bank,
KeeneOfnce). 2.212.288- 2,247,266

Non-Interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the

Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual Interest Installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance 1s still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, In
annual Interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
-balance is still outstanding at May 31; 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Cffice/CommunltyWay). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank In monthly installments for
principal and Interest of $2,463 including Interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted In an

Interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note Is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TO Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018
*  • '

Non-Interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note Is forgiven each
year providing the property Is used for low Income
housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD.
Ashuelot). 125,000 150,000

Non^inferest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property'Is-used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD.
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing In annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 '794,189

Non-Interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment Is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balarice becomes due. The •
note Is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 344,536- 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company In
monthly Installments for principal and Interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note Is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econollne Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note: •f>8y^.b|G to a finance coni'pahy In
monthly InstiaHments: for principal- and Interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note Is secured by
a vehicle (Ally. Econollne Van). 19.267 24.564
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2019 2016
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued Interest at 1% were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was

secured by land and buildings.. The balance
Included cumulative accrued Interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TO Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31. 2019 and this note
was paid In full. . - 41,099

Troy Senior - Non-Interest bearing note payable to
a county In New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures In June 2029. The

note Is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640.000

Tn?y Senior - Non-Interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the

■ Authortt/S' Greener Homes Program. Payment Is '
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred-until the note matures In December

2028. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900.000

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (COFA) to fund
energy upgrades and 'capital Improvements.
Beginning In 2016, 10% of the note Is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years In
January 2026. The note Is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,099 178.172
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2019 2018

Keene East SW.e - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by reai estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228.934 228.934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September. 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282.720 -

Swanzey • Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due
September 2043, payable In monthly installments
of $1,698, Including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110 -

t  \

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable In monthly Installments of $2,002
Including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561 r

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest
mortgage note payable to New Hanipshire
Housing (AHF). due June 2034, principal and
Interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined
by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low Income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year lerm of the mortgage. 237,173
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2019 2018

Winchester • Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, Including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year temi of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 50,436 53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's-land and buildings, subject to low
income housing us© restrictions for the 30-year
term ofthe mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing resfrictlonB under the terms of the
AHP agreement In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan Is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). ■ - - '1SQ.OOO - 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortlzed deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8,490,421

Unamortlzed deferred financing costs (18.943) — >-

9.313-,666 8.490.421

Less cun^nt portion due within one year 227.221 216.436

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 Is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount
2020 $ 227.221

2021 121,051
2022 115,864
2023 115,596
2024 118,605

Thereafter 8.634.272

Total
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Origanlzatlbn 'leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows;

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  78,745
21,677

18,318
1,050

720

120

Total ^120:630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED.BALANCES

At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organlzatlpn accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested In the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES
Southwestern'Community Sen,^lces, Inc. Is the 100% owner of SCS Housing,
Inc. and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SCS Housing. Inc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten limited partnerships formed to
develop low-Income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestem Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization Is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
If any, have not been determined or assessed by govemment audits as of May
31. 2010 and 2018.

NOTE 7 REi-AtEP: PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SOS Housing, Inc. managed
tan limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled

.  $313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing. Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entitles totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31. 2019
and 2016.

NOTE 8 .EdUfTY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests in the following companies:

2019 ■  201§

CItyside Housing Associates, LP $  (9.500) $  (9.492)
Mariborough Homes, LP (11) 8

Payson Village Senior Housing Associates. LP (12,503) (12.491)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (1.897) (1.715)
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (21) (17)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,842 222.846
Westmlll Senior Housing, LP 78 90
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP - (31.190)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP - (60.716)
Keene Highland Housing Associates. LP (260) (243)
Pibt Health, LLC (18.3741

^ 88.706
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SCS Housing Developm6nt. Inc. is a 0.01% partner of CItyslde Housing
Associales, LP, Mariborough Homes. LP. Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, WanA/Ick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner In Westmlll Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2016.

SCS Housing. Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during (he years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership Interest In Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is Included In
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest In Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestem Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is
included in (he consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31. 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31. 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31. 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets i  5.74S

Totalllabllltles -iAM
Capital/Member's equity .^^3.29:1

Income

Expenses

Net Income (loss)

i^.,5 745

$  426

■ 661

2

47.461

(14.6791

3i:.-32i2fi2:

$; 8^171:3

-  .8-1:476-

S  3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENL-PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS
Net assets with donor restrictions am available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPSA/Varm Fund
Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

5.973 $

91,908
47,260
6,575

31.200 _

21,327
4,963

118,401

Total net assets with donor restrictions

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT.
During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized fo.rglveness of

.  debt Income In connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt Income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income In connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services. Inc. acquired a partnership Interest In three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following Is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition;

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Show BrbOk

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$ 24,508
11,467

164.110
990,842 '

.  12.328.

$ 12,856
7,330

'  119,061
1,330.231

. 6.436.

$13,374
8.821

178,852
1.211,341

.15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1-.475>91.4. T:428-.164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304.073
....22.009

\

666,902

.. 87.108.

665,173
140.1.19

Total liabilities 326:082 .  754;0,i;o: ...805:292.

Partners' capital 677,;.173 721;904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties .. f53.8881 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred ■$^823^285 $683;588.
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NOTE 13 AVAiLABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

•  Tfie follbwlhg represehts 'Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31. 2019 and 2018:

2019

Financial assets at year end:
2018

Cash and cash equivalents $  882,187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1.095,486
Due from related party 59,102 -  188.523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45.547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve furvjs 840:334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 .  ,3:046.304

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

(59,102)
(112,000)
(45.547)

■(729.4861

^(946.1351

(188,523)
(112,000)
(45.547)

(44^-980y

-(-791.0501

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. TTie
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION
Certain arnbunts and-'accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reciasslfled to enhance comparability wHh the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENTIEVENTS-
•  Subsequ'ehtlevents'are events or transactions that occur after the statement of

financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be Issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date.
Including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that.provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5,2019. the date the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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:St)UTHWEStERN:fe6Mft[UNIT\^S^^^

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED.'MAy 3i. 20.19:

NOTE 1 BASiS_ORPRESEN
The accompahylrtg schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
Infonnatlon In this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Unifonn Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., It Is not Intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 :SOMMARY.OF;SIGNIFICANT:ACCdliNTING:PGLICiES
'Expenditures' (epbrted 'oh the* Schedule are reported on the accaiel basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following' the cost principles
contained In the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Cbmrhunilty Services. Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. -

NOTE 4 FOODDONATION

No'nmdrietary'assistance Is reported In the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. had no subreclplents for the year ended
May 31,2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNfi^ENt AUMN(j^^^^^

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Keene. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
Slates of America and the standards applicable to Financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptix>llef General of the United Stales, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestem Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31. 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated November 5. 2019.

■ Internal .Control 0»flr, Flhahclal-Repoftrng,
In "planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern- Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate'In the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or delect and correct, misstalements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material mlsslatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal conlrot that is less severe than .a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of the Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In Intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these iimitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

CompllanceJand.bther Ma'ttere;
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance .witrt which could have a direct and material effect on (he determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on oompliance with

those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. .The resuKs of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purooseofthrs.Repbr^.

ThV:purpbse.;bf;thi8'repor1 Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control and
compliahce ar)d the results of that testing, arxl not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Intemal control or on compHance. This report is an Integral part of an audit
performed. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards In" considering the

.Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 5. 2019
Woifeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIREO BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE.

To the Board of Direclors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene. New Hampshire

Rebbrt on Compllahce.Tbr Eachfi^alor Pedora! Program
We: have audllW .Sbuthwesteni'.Gdmmunlty Servjces-, Inc. (a New Hampshire rfohprbfit
corporation) and related companies' compllahce Wiih the types of compliance requirements
described injhe 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Soul'hweSiem Community Services, Ihc.'s major,federal programs for the year ehdSd 'May
31. 2019. Southwestern .(^mmunily Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified 1n the
summary of "auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

(

Management's Responsibility
Management Is-responsible for compliance with the; federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and'(»hdilibns of its federal.awards applipable to its federal prpgrams,

Audltofs'-Reeponslbllltv

Oiir; re'sporislbiiity Is ;to express an opinion on compliance forbai^ of Southwestern immunity
ServlMS. Ihc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types, of ppirnpHance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awaixis
(Uniform Guidance). Those ;stenclards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the :a.udii 'to,-obtain reasoriable assy.ran.ce about ̂ vyhejher ̂ noncpmpiiance with the types of
compHance requirements referred to above that could' have a dIreGf-end'material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary, in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwe's.lern Corhmunily Se'ivlces. Inc.'s compliance.
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'Opini6W;dh Each'MalorFisde
■In our opinion; So'yl^westem Gpmmunlty^^^S Inc. complied, In all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

^fepori on IriternaT'^ontroliO'Vor GbhfiDiiance:
Manageriient . of Southwestern Coniniunlty Services, Inc. Is responsible ifcir establishing and
malritainlng effectlye InternaT Gontrol over compliance with the itypes-of compliance requirements
referred to ;at)oye; In planning and performing, our audit 'of compliance, we. considered
Souihwesferri 'Gofnmurilty ■Services;. lnc..'S Ihtprha) '.cOotiO!: • ■.^'mpjlKn'ciei.'wH.th. .thS: typ'es- of
raqulrem'erils- thati could have >a:cilredt'and friaterial' effect on^each wajpf federal, p to
determlrve thevaudljlng; prd^ures that :ara^••appf<;)p.^^ in tfieVcircpmstaVces,;^^^^ of
expre'sslng'-an'-opihlbri .hriajof'federal. prbpram "and toiteat: aBd^repbrt'on
intemaj.-odntfol ove^^'fhpliance'ln-e^rdance with ihie' UrilfQrfh GjuldanM, bjit'not fdr'thej^
of expressing pp.linjpn on the effe^lye^ of Inlern'ai, A'<^rcl.(hgjyi. we
do"not expVess an opinion on the effectiveness .of SpothwVste^ 'S.ery)ces,.';lhc.'s
inlemal control over compliance.

•Adeficlehcy In Iriteni^al. cgnlrp^ pyerMmpllarice. exi.s.tsiwhen the .d.eslgn or .operation ,pf-a ..control
oyer^cpmpllaricp 'dpes riot aifoW rhanageimen't .or employees; (h the riormalxourse.-of'performlng
ithelf a.s§lpri0d functions;. :to. p.reyent; or detect and correct, mpncompllance.' .wlth' .ai-type of
compllaripe:.re.qulr.0merit<,o^a ^8tf0 a' tlmelyvbasls.-. .■A:matertal weaknesS;.in:lritemai
contrpi over compliance Is a deffclency; or cornblnatlpri of deficiencies iri Internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material:tioncompll.ance';Wtth-aitype Of
compliance requirement of a federal prooram will riol be -pieYente'dj.or .detected and wrrecte'd; oh
a timely basis. A significant deficiency In Iriterrial conlfdl'o.yer'icd'mplla.nc&ls.a.dencTe'rYdyi, drai
combiriation of deficienclBS, In Internal control; over'compliance.'with S' type oi. '(^rh'pjlahce
requirement of a federal program that Is less severe-than? a"; matbrial we'akrie'ss; In .btemal'^
over compliance, yet Irnportant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. '

Our consideration ofjntem.al control.over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to Ideritlfy all deficlehcles .In Internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or slgnlficahl defldencies: A^e did not identify
any deficiencies In Inte.mal control over compliance that we'.'dpnslder to be mat'eriai.'weakriesses.
However, material weaknesses rhey exist that were not Identified. *

purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wblfeboro, New Hampshire
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^QUtHW^ERN:GQMM^

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENbEb-MAY.3i.-2bl9

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No' significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Contnol Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on en Audit of Financial
Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No .Instances of nonco.mpljance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be ropbrted In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were'dlsclosed during the audit. -

4. No significant deficiencies In Internal control over, major federal award progriams are
reports In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on-lnierndl: Contrdl O' ven Compliance f^equlred by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The eudjtors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs forSoythwestem
Cbmmurilty Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

. 6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordar)ce with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs le^i^ a?, i^Jpr pragrarhs were:. U.S. Depa.rtmeht: of Health and 'Human
Servloeb; Low-;jnOOme Hbrii.e. Enpiigy' Assf^terice. .0(3.^60; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

6. The threshold for distinguishing Type A end B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low>r1sk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOMWESTERN GQMWlTY^SER^ifeiS. INC: ANbigELAIEtl^^

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDrMAY 31.-201Q

TheriB'were no findings or questioned costs that vyecei'.'re^^ to be reported In the Schedule
of Fjndlng^;and Questioned-G'dsts for the year end^ Way-31,2018.
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1  Southwestern Ctimmunit)' Services; Inc Board of,Directors -Compositioo -2020-1

CTfESHlRE COUNTY SULLIVAN eOUNTY

CfJNStlTUENT Beth Fox IViary Lou Huffling
SECTOR A'ssi'staiit ̂ ity Meager/ Fall Mountain Emergency Food .SlieliT

Human Resources Director • A1 stead Friendly.MMls
City oT'Kecnc

•

BriahriaTrombi
Head St^ Pollcy Council
Parent Representative

PRrVATE Kcvirf Wa.ttersoh, Chair/Secretary .Anne Beattie

SEGTOR G.larkc'Gompanies (retired)

i

Newport.Seniicc Qrg^izatipn

PDBOC Jay Kahn. Kerry Belknap. Morris; M.-Ed.

SECTOR Stale Scnaior, Di.^icl 1.0 Early ChildhoodjEducation
Rjvcr YalleyCommun.ity GoljQge

David Ed kins D.crck Ferland

Walpolc, m Sullivan County Manager

—



SCSLITIEAP-&.ASSURANCE 16

Key Personnel

Name. Job Title Salary % Raid'fr.oih

this Conlraci'

, Amoiihl paid,from

this Contract

John Manning Executive Director, $147,867 0% 0

Terra-Rogers Difectorof Ener^ &
Employment- Programs

S56.I60 50% $28,080

IP



John A. Manning

dver Sp years of'expi^ence with non-profil organizations, as both an
outside auditor and prei^ntly Chief ̂ ecuthre Officer of a large
comniunlty action agency.

ExpcHience. •2014-Rresent Sputhwes'lern Community Services Inc.
Keene. NH

Chief Exe.cutlye bfficer

Has ovefall.strategc and operalibAal-respohsibaity for a cohimuhity.'actiori
agency prdvidlng'services.to, low and moderate income Individuals.
Programs'include.Head Stait Fuel:Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing prbjectsi Bespdhsibilltles indude.malntaihihg or^plng'ex ,
dgofbu's.prbgmni'e^luatic^ 8nd:cdhsistentqua!(ty.of-fthari(».:ddmtnistmfibo.
fundralsihgl comrhunlcatiohs and s^tems; Worlts viilh the" Board ofDirertprs
arid management.teahi'td ifhplemenl the'bbjectives;of SCS's strategc plan.
,Actively ehgagSs and.eherglze's vcHOnteers.. board mempdrs, e.«nt '
rcorhmittees. p^erhgOi^anizations'ar^.'fu^^ a^.Hisin.tains
;Stiong\felaiion^ips viith^.t^ Bbard-of Qiiect^ ahdiseiyelas ex^ofl^
rhember of the^BbdiiJ. Lead's, coaches; devetoj^ and'retalnsVa high-
perfprmahce management tearnVEnsures'.effeoth^rsystenis to
measure'V^'H^ fwdbrn)ahce,.'prbyide.reguld febdback'to fundlngspurces
arid cpmrnuhfty partners,

1990-2014 Southwestern CdmmuhityServ.ices Inc;
Keerie, NH

Chief Rnanclai;6fftcer

Oversees -all 'fiscal functions Supervi^ a staff of-1, wim an agency
budget' of' 0!^' :$• 13.^.000; overeees agency, property
rnanagement department, manages over-300 units of affordable
housing..

198S-199S Keene State Coiiege keene, NH
Adjunct Professor

Taught .evening accounting classes for their oontinulng education
program.-

1970-1S9O \ John; A. Manning, Keene. NH ;
Certified Ffubilc Accountiint
Provid^ puUic eccounti.r^ services b .small and rn^lum sized clients;
Indudir^ .multiple non-profit organizations. Performed certified audlts-on
several dienfe, includlr>g Head Start and other non-profil clients



1975-1978, Kostiri and.Co. CPA's West Hartfbrd.Cl.

Staff Accountant

PeffofTiied all-aspects .of pu.&Tc acp(M.nting ̂  medium sized accounting
firm, ..Audited.'tafge nu.riitte'r of privately hekJ.and non-profit dients.

EducatiiMi 1971-1975 Univeiaity of Mass. Amherst. Ma,

• B.S. Business Administration in Abcounting

Organizations American institute of Certified Public. Accolintantis.
•NH Society of Certified Pubiic:Accibuhtarits



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 10 years of

experience In a non-profit setting.

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC'Skllls

•  :Human Resources-

•  Problerh-Splvlhg

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

•  tead and Motivate- •

:• Excellent Communication •

.• Community Outreach •

•  -Pecisioh Making •

Interviewing

Database Management
Training and Development

■Maintain Confidentiality

EXPERIENCE

11/2006'. CurrentSouthwestern Comrhuhity-Servlces [Keene/Claremont NH]
Director.of Eriergy-qnd Empjoymeht Programs (11/20.15- Current)
Oversee all. daily, operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor l^eiping Neighbor,
Senior .Energy .Assistance .and Assurance 16 as well as the Workforce, innovation and'
Opportunities Act Program (WlOA)'.

W.lpA'Empioym'eht Counselor jll/200.6''ll/2015)
pVoyl.de career mari.agemeht sen/Ices toeilgible cus.tomers with a focus b.h'heipihg.them obtain
-employme.nt,. Follows, stringent guidelines and extensive d.o.curn,entati.bn. -to help, "ensur.e
program Is running with federal and state governrnent regulations. Seryes as a.jlaison between
customers,, jhstructors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of
community resdurces'to help provide appropriate referrals throughout the:cqmmunity..

5tapl.es [Various l.ocatlon's'thrbugh'but VT, ME, NY'ahd NH} 9/199&-1X/2006
Operptfons Mqngg.er
Cohsistehtly promoted, over a. 10 year period. Established and maintalned.all store operations.
;Prpyided.high ehd cusfomer'servi.ce which helped to•cohtihuously exceed maxirhufn sales goals.
Fulfilled a broad range of HR functions, including; recruiting, ohboardin'g, evaluatibhs; staff
traihihg, administering, benefits, overseeing, disdplihaiy a'ctibh and managing store personnel.
■Mariaged.staff payroll.'Store-schedulirig, cbrfipany marketing and oVerall.stbre..presentatibn.

EOUCATI.ON

Granite Stdte College- Concord, NH
Bachelof of Science (.6S) in Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated Jurie 2012


